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| NDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTSO6 REVI EW REPORT

The Board of Directors and StockHels
Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.

We have reviewed the accompanyansolidatedalance sheets of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.

and subsidiariedithe Compang) asof SeptembeB0, 2012and2011 and the relatedonsolidated
statements ofincome and cash flow for the nine months then ended. These consolidated
financi al statements are the responsibility of
issue a report on thesensolidatedinancial statements based on our review.

Except for the matterdescribed in the next paragraph, we conducted our reviews in accordance

with the Statement on of Auditing Standards No,BBRe vi ew o f Fi n,assued bg | St at
the Auditing Committee of the Accounting Research and Development Foundation of thdidRepu

of China. A review consists principally of applying analytical procedures to financial data and
making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially

less in scope than an audit conducted in accordanbeawditing standards generally accepted in

the Republic of China, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an audit opinion.

As discussed in Not& to the consolidatedinancial statements, the financial statemegitsertain
subsidiaries as of and for the nine months erBleptembe30, 2012 and 2011 have not been
reviewed. The total assets of these subsidiaries ®&@6 (NT$14,872,593thousand) and

3.57% (NT$15,116,062 thousand), and tbeal liabilities of these subsidiaries wetd.68%
(NT$6,345,424 thousand) and 9.72% (NT$5,864,612 thousand), of the related consolidated
amounts as of September 32012 and 2011 respectively. The total revenued these
subsidiaries wer®.18%0 (NT$,175,559thousand) and 3.36% (NT$5,463,717 thousand) of the
related consolidated revenues for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively and their net income (losses) were (113&,911)thousand antT$885,459 thousand

for the nine months ended September ZW,2and 2011, respectively. Further, & discussed in

Note 12 to theconsolidatedinancial statementshe financial statements oertainequity method
investees as of and for the nine mondmled September 3@012 and 2011 have not been
reviewed and as discussed iNote 34 to the consolidatedfinancial statementshe disclosed
information was based on the aforementioned financial statements, which have not been reviewed,
of certain equitymethod nvestees as of and for thée months ende®eptember 302012 and

2011 The aggregate carrying values of seeequity method invesees were NT$2,666,975
thousandand NT$2,426,127 thousars of September 3@012 and 2011, respectivelyand the

equity in earnings wereNT$460,623thousand and NT$236,238 thousdiod the nine months
endedSeptember 3®012and2011, respectively



Based on our reviews, except for the effects of such adjustments, iBsinyight have been
determined to be necesgdnad we reviewefinancial statementsf certain subsidiaries and equity
method investees referred to in the preceding paragmaphare not aware of any material
modifications that should be made to the financial statements referred to above for theein to
conformity with the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities
Issuers, andccounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China.

/s] DELOITTE & TOUCHE

Deloitte & Touche
Taipei, Taiwan
The Republiof China

October 26, 2012

Notice to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and

practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions.

The standards, procedures and practices to review such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

For t he convenience of reader s, t he account a
consolidated financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any coeffieeédn the English

version and the original Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions,

the Chines¢ anguage accountantsé review report and
prevail.



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SU BSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012AND 2011

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par ValuBata)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2 and 4)

Finartial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 2 and 5)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 2 &)d

Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2 and 7)

Trade notes and accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $849,956 thousand in 2012 and $2,458,168 thousand in 2C
(Notes 2, 8 and 20)

Receivables from related parties (Note 27)

Other monetary assets (Note 9)

Inventories, net (Notes 2, 10, 20 and 29)

Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 24)

Restricted assets (Notes 20 and 28)

Other current assets (Notes 10, 11, 20 and 27)

Total current assets

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
Investments accounted for using equity method (Notes 2 and 12)
Financial assets carried at cost (Notes 2 and 13)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 2 and 6)
Held-to-maturity financial assets (Notes 2 and 7)
Other monetary assets (Notes 14 and 29)

Total longterm investments

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2, 15, 27 and 28)
Cost
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Computer equipment
Telecommunications equipment
Transportation equipment
Miscellaneous equipment
Total cost
Revaluation increment on land

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Less: Accumulated impairment

Constructdn in progress and advances related to acquisition of equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Note 2)
3G concession
Goodwill
Others

Total intangible assets

OTHER ASSETS
Leased assets
Idle assets (Notes 2 and 15)
Refundable deposits
Deferred income tax assets (Notes 2 and 24)
Restricted assets (Note 28)
Others (Note 27)

Total other assets

TOTAL

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofénsolidatedinancial statements.

(With Deloitte & Touchereviewreport datedctober 26, 2012

2012 2011

Amount % Amount %
$ 38,823,455 9 $ 48,803,511 12
32,678 - 77,734 -
2,390,784 1 2,544,351 1
2,981,338 1 1,621,912 -
24,400,896 6 22,191,646 5
28,215 - 19,411 -
1,768,167 - 1,923,956 -
4,059,109 1 4,883,896 1
106,808 - 147,173 -
11,040 - 47,979 -
9,679,448 2 8,223,615 2
84,281,938 20 90,485,184 21
2,687,936 1 2,426,127 1
2,616,087 1 2,856,715 1
3,261,868 1 45,449 -
14,005,461 3 12,681,837 3
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 -
23,571,352 6 19,010,128 5
103,882,897 25 103,698,711 25
1,576,513 - 1,552,425 -
67,726,707 16 67,575,171 16
14,991,833 4 14,624,276 3
663,029,540 157 648,230,088 153
3,028,020 1 2,405,725 1
7,104,483 2 6,584,215 2
861,339,993 205 844,670,611 200
5,762,418 1 5,762,611 1
867,102,41 206 850,433,222 201
583,235,154 139 565,151,142 133
1,257,050 - - -
282,610,207 67 285,282,080 68
17,198,834 4 14,458,045 3
299,809,041 71 299,740,125 71
4,678,805 1 5,427,414 1
245,184 - 245,184 -
948,142 - 598,034 -
5,872,131 1 6,270,632 1
392,253 - 403,181 -
881,270 - 900,630 -
1,901,688 1 1,661,226 1
369,213 - 517,086 -
8,866 - 8,152 -

4,052,596 4,111,694

7,605,886 2 7,601,969 2
$ 421,140,348 100 $ 423,108,038 100

LI ABI'LI' TIES AND STOCKHOLDERS®

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shortterm loans (Note 16)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 2 and 5)
Trade notes and accounts payable (Note 20)
Payables to related parties (Not® 2
Income tax payable (Notes 2 and 24)
Accrued expenses (Notes 17 and 20)
Current portion of londerm loars (Note 19)
Other current liabilities (Notes 10, 18, 20 and 27)

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Longterm loans (Note 19)
Deferred income (Note 2)

Total noncurrent liabilities
RESERVE FOR LAND VALUE INCREMENTAL TAX (Note 15)

OTHER LIABILITIES
Accrued pension liabilities (Notes 2 and 26)
Customers' deposits (Note 27)
Others

Total other liabilities
Total liabilities

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO STOCKHOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(Notes 2, 6, 15 and 21)
Capital stock $10 par value;
Authorized: 12,000,000 thousand shares
Issued: 7,757,447 thousand shares
Additional paidin capital
Capital surplus
Donated capital
Equity in additional paidn capital reported by equiyethod investees
Total additional paidn capitd
Retained earnings
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Unappropriated earnings
Total retained earnings
Other adjustments
Cumulative translatio adjustments
Unrecognized net loss of pension
Unrealized gain on finanai instruments
Unrealized revaluation increment
Total other adjustments

Total equity attributable to stockholders of the parent
MINORITY INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL

EQUI

2012 2011

Amount % Amount %
$ 130,000 - $ 135,000 -
222 - 82,340 -
12,346,431 3 10,516,374 3
477,403 - 578,256 -
1,474,128 - 1,898,721 -
13,404,514 3 13,656,757 3
33,489 - 304,007 -
20,359,474 5 21,644,034 5
48,225,661 11 48,815,489 11
1,650,000 - 1,983,489 -
2,585,200 1 2,546,147 1
4,235,200 1 4,529,636 1
94,986 - 94,986 -
1,531,595 1 1,411,828 1
4,870,073 1 5,109,861 1
431,740 - 360,524 -
6,833,408 2 6,882,213 2
59,389,255 14 60,322,324 14
77,574,465 19 77,574,465 18
169,496,289 40 169,496,289 40
13,170 - 13,170 -
33,073 - 26,460 -
169,542,532 40 169,535,919 40
70,828,983 17 66,122,145 15
2,675,894 1 2,675,894 1
30,957,835 7 37,065,672 9
104,462,712 25 105,863,711 25
(72,179 - (25,363 -
(35,789 - (40,617 -
311,879 - 64,050 -
5,760,582 1 5,762,829 2
5,964,503 1 5,760,899 2
357,544,212 85 358,734,994 85
4,206,881 1 4,050,720 1
361,751,093 86 362,785,714 86
$ 421,140,348 100 $ 423,108,038 100



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARI

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, ExceptEarnings Per ShareData)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

ES

NET REVENUES(Note 27)
OPERATING COSTS (Note 27)
GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 27)
Marketing
General and administrative
Research and development

Total operating expenses
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND GAINS (Notes 1
and 27)
Interest income
Equity in earnings of equity method investees, ne
Gain on disposal of financial instruments, net
Foreign exchange gain, net
Valuation gain on financial instruments, net
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipmer

net

Others

Total nonroperating income and gains
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES AND LOSSES
Impairment loss (Notes 6, 13 and 15)
Interestexpense
Valuation loss on financial instruments, net
Others
Total nonoperating expenses and losses
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 2 and 24)

CONSOLIDATED NET INCOME

2012 2011
Amount % Amount %
$ 164,008,760 100 $ 162,606,604 100
104,375,603 64 96,763,912 60
59,633,157 36 65,842,692 40
16,043,672 10 16,843,882 10
2,972,601 2 3,162,595 2
2,743,066 1 2,601,821 2
21,759,339 13 22,608,298 14
37,873,818 23 43,234,394 26

586,191 1 500,049 1
461,329 - 236,238 -
64,231 - 112,958 -
48,094 - 16,744 -
31,282 - - -
18,883 - 22,183 -
4,051 - 299,920 -
262,660 - 318983 -
1,476,721 1 1,507,075 1
1,397,704 1 - -
16,030 - 24,080 -
- - 116,181 -
53,566 - 42,391 -
1,467,300 1 182,652 -
37,883,239 23 44,558,817 27
6,066,681 4 6,712,551 4
$ 31,816,%8 _ 19 $ 37,846,266 _ 23
(Continued)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, ExceptEarnings Per ShareData)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2012 2011
Amount % Amount %
ATTRIBUTED TO
Stockholders of the parent $ 30,957,707 19 $ 37,065,217 23
Minority interests 858,851 - 781,049 -
$ 31,816,558 19 $ 37,846,266 _ 23
2012 2011
Income Income
Before Before
Income Net Income Net
Tax Income Tax Income
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 25)
Basic earnings per share $ 4.73 $ 3.99 $ 5.59 $ 4.75
Diluted earnings per share $ 4.72 $ 3.98 $ 557 $ 4.74
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdinsolidatedinancial statements.
(With Deloitte & Toucheeviewreport datedctober 26, 2012 (Concluded)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012AND 2011

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Consolidated nehcome

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by opel

activities:
Provision for (reversal of) doubtful accounts
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of premium of financial assets
Valuation loss (gain) on financial instruments, net
Gain on disposal of financial instruments, net
Gain on disposal of propty, plant and equipment, net
Loss on disposal of leased assets, net
Equity in earnings of equity method investees, net
Dividends received from equity investees
Impairment loss
Compensation cost of employee stock options
Loss arising from natural calamities
Deferred income taxes
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in:

Financial instruments held for trading

Trade notes and accounts receivable

Receivables from related parties

Other monetary assets

Inventories

Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in:

Trade notes and accounts payable

Payables to related parties

Income tax payable

Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

Deferred income

Accrued pension liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of designated financial asset at fair value through proi

loss

Proceeds from disposal of designated financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss
Acquisition of availabldor-sale financial assets
Proceeds from disposal of availaibte-sale financial asset
Acquisition of heldto-maturity financial assets

2012 2011
$ 31,816,558 $ 37,846,266
(1,450,408 95,746
24,391,777 24,135,427
49,217 43,073
(31,283 116,181
(64,232 (112,959
(4,05) (299,920
13 7
(461,329 (236,239
344,675 150,81
1,397,704 -
2,601 -
2,187 985
(20,800 (149,742
27,689 23,371
(572,379 (8,129,597
394,378 41,544
296,466 184,861
1,166,814 (332,502
(3,328,098 (3,059,164
(2,812,138 (1,588,123
(719,300 537,347
(2,064,52% (2,671,36})
(5,152,750 (4,741,456
(223,746 3,119,249
7,737 (42,763
86,236 119196
43,079,019 45,050,259
(29,549 (87,987
81,997 82,801
(4,452,273 (3,785,956
1,577,095 3,322,550
(3,865,172 (5,113,772
(Continued)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012AND 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

Proceeds from disposal of hdaletmaturity financial assets
Acquisition of financial assets carried at cost

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets carried at cost
Proceeds from capital reduction of financial assets carried at cost
Liquidating dividend

Acquisition of investments accouudtéor using equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in intangible assets

Increase in restricted assets

Increase in other assets

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANGONG ACTIVITIES
Increase in shotterm loans
Decrease in sheterm bills payable
Repayment of longerm loans
Decrease in customersbd
Increase in other liabilities
Cash dividends paid
Capital reduction
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock option granted by sub
Decrease in imority interests

deposi

Net cash used in financing activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES
EFFECT OF CHANGE ON CONSOLIDATED SUBBIARIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END & PERIOD
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Interest paid (excluding capitalized interest expense)

Income tax paid

NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Current portion of longerm loans

2012 2011

$ 1525895 $ 1,138,898
(35,972 (200,879
69,553 57,277
20,000 -
1,802 318
(25,912 (364,640
(22,556,002 (16,582,594
33,025 648,854
(3614718 (238,523
(10,079 (828
(313,519 (949,190
(28,340,82y (22,073,67)
55,000 20,000

- (229,896

(76,770 (1,169,659
(82,889 (743,862
25,516 1,332
(42,361,863 (42,854,462
- (19,393,61y

39,112 71,959
(883,470 (769,419
(43,285,363 (65,067,623
(18,929 132,031

- (112,706
(28,566,10) (42,071,71)
67,389,556 90,875,222
$ 38,823,455 $ 48,803,511
$ 22988 § 24241
$ 8,170,675 $ 9,519,457
8372 % 75,351
(Continued)



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012AND 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

(Reviewed, Not Audited)

2012 2011
CASH AND NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in property, plant and equipment $ 21,885,208 $ 17,529,415
Decrease (increase) in payables to equipment suppliers 677,634 (1,034,353
Prepaynents for equipment (6,840 87,532
$ 22,556,002 $ 16,582,594

InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. fIFEG) merged with International Integrated System, Inc. aff@d¥ou International,

Inc. on April 1, 2011. After the mergerJFE became the survivingngty and was renamed &sternational

I ntegrated Sys tnemgtiondl imtegrated SystdmSlhco gndarou International, Inc. were
dissolved. As IFE issued new shares for the aforementioned share swap, the following table presents the
allocation of acquisition costs of International Integrated System Inc. -dimYeu International Inc. to assets

acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values:

Cashand cash equivalents $ 46,592
Accounts receivables 199,592
Financialassets at fair value through profit and loss 38,073
Othercurrentassets 17,822
Longterm investments 34,051
Property, plant, and equipment 4,996
Refundable deposits 43,553
Other assets 4,472
Accounts payables (79,713
Other current liabilities (25,145
Other liabilities (38,480
Common stock issued by IFE $ 245,813

Chunghwa has lost control over International Integrated Syistent .
table presents assets and liéibs of 11SI based on their fair values

Current assets (excluding cash) $ 591,925
Long-term investments 64,219
Property, plant, and equipment 59,891
Intangible assets 2,679
Other assets 130,173
Current liabilities (276,356
Other liabilities (102,917%
Net assets (628,912
Cashbalance upon deconsolidation $ (159,298
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdnsolidatedinancial statements.

(With Deloitte & Toucheeviewreport datedctober26, 2012 (Concluded)

©rfiurie 84, 20)1.

The following



CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Stated Otherwise)
(Reviewed, Not Audited)

1. GENERAL

Chunghwa Telecom Co. , Lt d. (AChunghwao) was i nc
(AROCO) pursuant to the Article 30 of the Telec
shares and, prior to August 2000, was olsh owned by the Ministry of Transportation and
Communications (AMOTCO) . Prior to July 1, 199¢
under the Directorate General of Telecommunicat
in Junel943 to take primary responsibility in the development of telecommunications infrastructure and to
formulate policies related to telecommunications. On July 1, 1996, the telecom operations of the DGT
were spurpff to as Chunghwa which continues to carty the business and the DGT continues to be the
industry regulator.

As the dominate telecommunications service provider of fixexl and Global System for Mobile
Communications (AGSMoOo) in the ROC, ChungRD@a i s

Effective August 12, 2005, the MOTC had completed the process of privatizing Chunghwa by reducing the
government ownership to below 50% in various stages. In July 2000, Chunghwa received approval from
the Securities and Fo)urMfes @omminesitdre (itnhdaif@$F(

shares were |isted and traded on the Taiwan Sto
Chunghwaés common shares had been sol d, domesticonn
public offerings at wvarious dates from August 2

had also been sold in an international offering of securities in the form of American Depository Shares
(AADSO) on July 17and20tOr3a daendd owne rtehel i degve dYor k St
The MOTC sold common shares@fiunghwaby auction in the ROC on August 9, 2005 and completed the
second international offering on August 10, 2005. Upon completion of the share transfers assitkiated
these offerings on August 12, 2005, the MOTC owned less than 50% of the outstanding shares o
Chunghwaand completed the privatization plan.

Senao International Co. , Ltd. (ASENAOQOO) was in
Taiwan Stocke x change wunder the number R24500 since Me
and maintaining mobile phones and its peripheral products. Chunghwa acquired 31.33% shares ¢
SENAO on January 15, 2007 and has substantial control in SENAO by obtaitfirg thee seats of the

board of directors of SENAO on April 12, 2007. At general annual stockholder meeting of SENAO in

June 2010, Chunghwa continued to maintain control of a majority of the board of directors through the
continued support of other shaceh d e r . The Companydés equity own
31.33% as of January 15, 2007 to 28.30% as of September 30, 2012 due to the exercise of options |
employees that were previously granted before 2007.

Senao International (Samoa) Holding L{8IS) was established by SENAO in 2009. SIS engages mainly
in international investment activities.

Senao International HK Limited (SIHK) was established by SIS in 2009. SIHK engages mainly in
international investment activities.

Senao Trading (FujiarG o . , Ltd. (ASTFO0O) was established by
of information and communication technology products.



Senao I nternational Trading (Shanghai) Co. , Lt
engages mainly in saldé mformation and communication technology products.

Senao I nternational Trading (Shanghai) CBEITS Lt c
engages mainly in provision of information and communication maintenance services.

The English name ithe same as the above entity; however, the Chinese names included in the respective
Articles of Incorporations are different.

Senao International Trading (Jiangsu) Co. , Lt d.
mainly in sale of inforration and communication technology services.

Chunghwaee st abl i shed Chunghwa I nternational Yel |l ow |
engages mainly in yellow pages sales and advertisement services.

CHIEF Telecom 1| nc. ( A Ci L99E 0 CHIEWR &rgageis maioly im dnteengte d
communication and Internet data center (Al DCO0O)
September 2006.

Unigate Telecom 1| nc. (AUni gat eod) was establish

telecommunication and information software service.

Chi ef I nternational Corp. (ACI Co) was establist
communication and Internet data center (Al DCOo0)

Chunghwa System | nt egrasincoparate€im 2002. LAGHS8I.engdgésCridisSly io )
providing communication and information integration services. Chunghwa acquired 100% shares of
CHSI in December 2007.

Concord Technol ogy Co. , Lt d. (AConcor 660 )Concaad s ut
engages mainly in investment activities.

Gl ory Network System Service (Shanghai) Co. , Lt
incorporated in 2006. GNSS (Shanghai) engages mainly in planning and designing of systems an
commurncations and information integration services.

Chunghwa Telecom Gl obal, l nc. (ACHTGO) was i n
international data and Internet services and long distance call wholesales to carriers. Chunghwa acquire
100% sharesef CHTG in December 2007.

Donghwa Telecom Co. , Ltd. (ADHTO) was incorpor e
telecommunications, IP fictitious Internet and Internet transfer services. Chunghwa acquired 100% share
of DHT in December 2007.

Spring House Entertainment Tech. I nc. (ASHEO)
network services, producing digital entertainment contents and broadband visual sound terrace developme
Chunghwa obtained control interest over it in Jan2a08.

Ceylon Innovation Co., Ltd. (ACEI 0) was establ
international trade, general advertisement and book publishing service.

Chunghwa established Light Era DevelEDegngages mainGo . ,
in development of property for rent and sale.

-10-



Yao Yong Real Property Co. , Ltd. (AYYRPO) was |
estate management and leasing business. LED acquired 100% ownership interest oihYM&#®ehol,
2010.

Chunghwa established Chunghwa Telecom Singapore
mainly in telecommunication wholesale, Internet transfer services, international data, long distance cal
wholesales to carriers and the washttellite business.

Chunghwa established Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co.
mainly in telecommunication business, information processing and information providing service,
development and sale of software and cdimgykervices in telecommunication.

I nfoExpl orer (ssued new shdres a$ fné EoBRsideration to merge with International
Integrated System, Inc. andTeYou International, Inc. on April 1, 2011. After the merger, IFE became
the survivingehi ty and was renamed as International I
Integrated System, Inc. andTeYou International, Inc. were dissolved. As a result of the additional
shares being issued by IFE in connection with this transactiom,n"Cphwa és owner shi p
decreased from 49% to 33% after the merger, and
Chunghwa lost control of the board of directors.

Chunghwa Investment Co., L t d CHI éngagds Imainly innpaotessienalt a t
investing in telecommunication business, and telecommunication vatltedi services. CHI was
equitymethod investee of the parent company. Chunghwa acquired over 50% shares of CHI on
September 2009.

Chunghwa Precisiolf e s t Tech. Co. , Lt d. (ACHPTO) was est:
CHPT engages mainly in production and marketing in semiconductor testers and printed circuit board.

Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. US A edChy CHPT rina201i0.0 n
CHPT (US) engages mainly in production and marketing in semiconductor testers and printed circuit
boards.

Chunghwa I nvestment Hol ding Company (ACI HCO?O) w
mainly in investment activities.

CHIOne I nvestment Co. , Lt d. (ACOI 0) was establi
investment activities.

Chunghwa has establsitd New Pr ospect I nvest ments Hol dings
The holding company is operating as investn@mpany and Chunghwa has 100% ownership interest in
an amount otJS$1 in the holding company as of September 30, 2012.

Chunghwa has =established Prime Asia Investment
holding company is operating as an istveent company.

Chunghwa Hsingta Company Ltd. (ACHCO) was esta
engages mainly in investment activities.

Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co. , Lt d. (ACTCO) was
mainly in erergy conserving and providing services of planning, design, and integration of information
systems.

Jiangsu Zhenhua I nf or mati on T e &s hestablisloed Yoy CGEE mapda n y

Zhenjiang New Area HTech Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. in Jamy 2012. JZIT engages mainly in
intelligent energy networks (iEN) and incorporating iEN into buildings.
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Chunghwa has established Chunghwa Telecom Viet
engages mainly in providing information and communicatiomfinelogy, internationaprivate leased
circuit, and intelligent energy network service.

Chunghwa and Sochamp Technology Inc. established a joint venture, Chunghwa Sochamp Technology Int
(ACHSTO), in July 2011. CHS Titiomsysteml v engages in

Chunghwa and United Daily News established a |

August 2011. SFD mainly engages in sales of educational software which provides digital parenting
education.

As of September 30, 2012 andl2Qthe Company had 30,254 and 28,426 employees, respectively.

The following diagram presents information regarding the relationship and ownership percentages betwee
Chunghwa and its subsidiaries as of September 30, 2012:

Chunghwa Telecom Cd.fd.

(Chunghwa)

100% 27.9% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 56.04% | 100%  |69.36%  [100% 89% 100% 100% 51% 65%
Chunghwg Senao Chunghwa| | Chunghwa| | Chunghwal | Chunghwa| [ Light Era Spring Donghwa CHIEF Chunghwa | Chunghwd New Prime Asia| | Chunghwa| Smartfun
Telecom | [international [internationg] | Telecom System Telecom | |Developme| House Telecom (| Telecom Telecom | | Investmen{ | Prospect| [Investmenty | Soctamp Digital Co.
Vietnam Co.,Ltd. Yellow Singapore] | Integration| |Global, Inc] | t Co.,Ltd. | |Entertainm{ | Co.,Ltd. Inc. Japan Co.| | Co.Ltd. | [investment| | GroupLtd. | |Technolog) Ltd.
Co,Ltd. | | ( @ SEN/|PagesCo|| Pte.Ltd. Co. Ltd. || (ACHTG) || (LEDG) | [ntTech.inc]| (ADHT®) || ( A CHI Ltd. (ACH Holdings (FPrime Inc. (ASFDO)
(FCHTV®) Ltd. (fcHTSy) || (A CHS (fisH (CHTX) Ld. (iNew| | Asiad) (FCHSTO)

(ACI Y Prospeal)

I Tz.es% | |
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 53196 100% | 100%

Senao Concord Yao Yong Ceylon Unigate Chief Chunghwa Chunghwal
International Technology Real Property | Innovation| | Telecom Inc. International Precision Investmen
(Samoa) Co., Ltd. Co, Ltd. Co,ld | (AuUni Corp. fiCICO) Test Tech, Holding
Holding Ltd. (AConcora) (AYYRPO) ( @Elo ) Co., Ltd. Company
(fSISV) (i CHP (ACIHCO)

100% 100%

100% 100%
Senao Glory Networl Chunghwa CHI One
International System Precision Teqd | Investment|
HK Limited Service Tech. USA Co.,Ltd.
(FSIHKO) (Shanghai) Corporation (i Olo)
Co., Ltd. (FCHPT
(AGNSY (usp)
(Shang|
0.3%%
Chunghwa
Hsingta
Company
100% 100% 100% 100% Ltd.
( HCoO )
Senao Senao Senao Senao
Trading ||Internationd |Internationg| |internationg] 100% L
(Fujian) Trading Trading Trading Chunghwa Jiangsu
Co,,Ltd. || (Shanghai] | (Jiangsu) || (Shanghai] Telecom Zhenhua
(AasTH| Co.Ltd. Co.,Ld. || Co.,Ltd. (China) Co.,| | Information
(ASI 1| (ASI ||(EBTS Ltd. ( A CT| | Technology
Company,
LLC. (A J Z
Chunghwa together with its subsidiaries are he

Minority interests in the aforementioned subsidiaries are presented as a separate component ¢
stockholdersé equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with the Guidelines
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and accptintipies generally
accepted in t he. REGigificArRa2cuntthg poltieg are summarized as follows:

Principle of Consolidation

The Company accounts for business combinations in accordance with the requirements of the Statement
Financi al Accounting Standards No. 25, AfBusi nes

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all directly and indirectly
majority owned subsidiaries of th@ompany and the accounts of investees in which @G@mpany s
ownership percentage is less than 50% but over wtiiehGCmpanyhas a controlling interest. All
intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated upon consolidation.

The consolidated financial statements for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 include the accour
of Chunghwa, SENAO, SIS, SIHK, STFITS, SITJ, SEITS, CIYP, CHIEF, Unigate, CIC, CHSI,
Concord, GNSS (Shanghai), CHTG, DHT, SHE, CEI, LED, YYRP, CHTS, CHTJ, CHI, CHPT, CHPT
(US), CIHC, COlI, New Prospect, Prime Asia, CHC, CTC, JZIT, CHTV, CHST, and SFD. The
consolidated financial statemerits the nine months ended September 30, 2011 include the accounts of
Chunghwa, SENAO, SIS, SIHK, STF, SITS, SITJ, SEITS, CIYP, CHIEF, Unigate, CIC, CHSI, Concord,
GNSS (Shanghai), CHTG, DHT, SHE, CEl, LED, YYRP, CHTS, CHTJ, lISI, IESA, IEHK, CHI, CHPT,
CHPT (US), CIHC, COlI, New Prospect, Prime Asia, CHC, CTC, CHTV, CHST, and SFD.

For foreign subsidiaries using their local currency as their functional currency, assets and liabilities are
translated into New Taiwan dollars at the exchange rates in effecttoh e bal ance sheet
equity accounts are translated into New Taiwan dollars at historical exchange rates and income stateme
accounts are translated into New Taiwan dollars at average exchange rates during the period.

The financial steements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 for the
following subsidiaries have not been reviewed: CIYP, CHIEF, Unigate, CIC, CHSI, Concord, GNSS
(Shanghai), CHTG, DHT, SHE, CEl, LED, YYRP, CHTS, CHTJ, CHI, CHPT, CHPT (US)CCIEDI,

New Prospect, Prime Asia, CHC, CTC, JZIT, CHTV, CHST, and SFD as of and for the nine months endec
September 30, 2012. CIYP, CHIEF, Unigate, CIC, CHSI, Concord, GNSS (Shanghai), CHTG, DHT,
SHE, CEl, LED, YYRP, CHTS, CHTJ, lISI, IESA, IEHK, CHI, CHPCHPT (US), CIHC, COI, New
Prospect, Prime Asia, CHC, CTC, CHTV, CHST, and SFD as of and for the nine months ended Septembe
30, 2011. The total assets of the above subsidiaries were 3.53% ($14,872,593 thousand) and 3.57
($15,116,062 thousand), and thatal liabilities of the above subsidiaries were 10.68% ($6,345,424
thousand) and 9.72% ($5,864,612 thousand), of the related consolidated amounts as of September 30, 2(
and 2011, respectively. The total revenues for these subsidiaries were 3.16p5, 858 thousand) and

3.36 % ($5,463,717 thousand), respectively, of the related consolidated amounts for the nine months ende
September 30, 2012 and 2011 and their net income (losses) were $(158,911) thousand and $885,4!
thousand for the nine months eddgeptember 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Foreign-currency Transactions

Foreigrcurrency transactions other than derivative contracts are recorded in New Taiwan dollars at the
rates of exchange in effect when the transactions occur. Exchange gaiosses derived from
foreigncurrency transactions or monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognized in earnings. At the balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreic
currencies are revalued arevailing exchange rates with the resulting gains or losses recognized in
earnings.
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At the balance sheet date, foreiggrrency nonmonetary assets (such as equity instruments) and liabilities
that are measured at fair value are revalued using prey&kchange rates. When a gain or loss on a
nonmonetary item is recognized in stockhol dersbd
be recognized in stockhol dersoé equi-mgnetary ite€thoishr v e r
recogrized in earnings, any exchange component of that gain or loss shall be recognized in earnings.

Foreigncurrency nonmonetary assets and liabilities that are carried at cost continue to be stated at exchan
rates at trade dates.

The financial statementd foreign equity investees and consolidated subsidiaries are translated into New
Taiwan dollars at the following exchange rates. Assets and liabiktisgot rates at perieend;
st oc k hol dhistosicdl rates, indormeyand expensaserage rateduring the period.

The resulting translation adjustments of financial statements shall be recorded as cumulative translatio
adjustments, a separate component of stockhol de

Accounting Estimates

Under above guidelines, law and principlesytain estimates and assumptions have been used for the
allowance for doubtful accounts, allowance for loss on inventories, depreciation of property, plant and
equipment, impairment of assets, bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors, penscorest

tax, etc. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Current and Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

Current assets include cash and cash equivalents, and those assets held primarily for trading purposes ol
be realized, sold or consumedthin one year from the balance sheet date. All other assets are classified
as noncurrent. Current liabilities are obligations incurred for trading purposes or to be settled within one
year from the balance sheet date. All other liabilities are cledsf noncurrent.

LED engages mainly in development of property for rent and sale. The assets and liabilities of LED
related to property development within its operating cycle, which is over one year, are classified as curren
items. Assets and liabilits related to property development over its operating cycle are classified as
noncurrent items.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are commercial paper purchased with maturities of three months or less from the date
acquisition. The carrying amourp@oximates fair value.

Financial Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial instruments classified as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(AFVTPLO) incl ude f{alliabditiescheld for tradmgand ase designatéd as a R\CTPL

on initial recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Aafiagaset is
derecognized when the Company losses control of its contractual rights over the financial asset. A
financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.
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Financial insruments at FVTPL are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized as expenses as incurre
Financial assets or financial liabilitiesRYTPL are remeasured at fair value, subsequently with changes in
fair value recognized in earnings. Cash dividends received subsequently (including those received in th
period of investment) are recognized as income. On derecognition of a financtabrassénancial
liability, the difference between its carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable or consideration paid and payable is recognized in earnings. Regular way purchases or sales
financial assets are accounted @ising trade date accounting.

Derivatives that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting are classified as financial assets or financic
liabilities held for trading. When the fair value is positive, the derivative is recognized as a finantjal asse
when the fair value is negative, the derivative is recognized as a financial liability.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at the balance sheet date are determined as follow:
Forward exchange contracts and currency swap cositeae estimated by valuation techniques; index
future contracts are determined at their market quotation on the balance sheet date; bonds are based
prices quoted by GreTai Securities Market (GTSM).

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

Availablefor-sde financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are

directly attributable to the acquisition. Changes in fair value from subsequent remeasurement are reporte
as a separate component oebponding acchntulatéddgaims 06 losseg) are t

recognized in earnings when the financial asset is derecognized from the balance sheet. A regular we
purchase or sale of financial assets is accounted for using trade date accounting.

The recognition and deregnition of availablg€or-sale financial assets are the same with those of financial
assets at FVTPL.

Fair values are determined as follows: Listed ste@ksclosing prices at the balance sheet date;-epdn
mutual funds at net asset values at tha@dnce sheet date; bondguoted at prices provided by the Taiwan
GreTai Securities Market; and financial assets and financial liabilities without quoted prices in an active
market- at values determined using valuation techniques.

Cash dividends are regnized in earnings on the-dividend date, except for the dividends declared before
acquisition which are treated as a reduction of investment cost. Stock dividends are recorded as a
increase in the number of shares and do not affect investment incdime.total number of shares
subsequent to the increase of stock dividends is used to recalculate cost per share. The difference betwe
the initial carrying amount of a debt instrument and its maturity amount is amortized using the effective
interest metod, with the amortized interest recognized in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired. |If
in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases, for equitiesethe previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed to the extent of the decrease and recorded as an adjustment
stockhol dersdéd equity; for debt securities, the
the decrease isedrly attributable to an event which occurred after the impairment loss was recognized.

Held-to-maturity Financial Assets
Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Those
financial assets areitially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the

acquisition. Gains and losses are recognized at the time of derecognition, impairment or amortization. /
regular way purchase or sale of financial assets suated for using trade date accounting.
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If there is objective evidence which indicates that a financial asset is impaired, a loss is recognized. If, ir
a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease is cleabieatiribut
an event which occurred after the impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized impairmen
loss is reversed to the extent of the decrease. The reversal may not result in a carrying amount th,
exceeds the amortized cost that would Hasen determined as if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

Investments in equity instruments with no quoted prices in an active market and with fair values that canno
be reliably measured, such as fublicly trade stocks and stocks traded in the Emerging Stock Market,
are measured at their original cost. The accounting treatment for dividends on financial assets carried «
cost is the same with that for dividends on availdbitesale financial assets. An impaient loss is
recognized when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. A reversal of this impairment los
is disallowed.

Impairment of Accounts Receivable

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided on the basis of a review of thetibdity of accounts
receivable before January 1, 2011. The Company assesses the probability of collections of accoun
receivable by examining the aging analysis of the outstanding receivables and assessing the value of tl
collateral provided by custars.

On January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the-tinvel revised Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 34, AFi nanci al I nstrument
revisions is that the impairment of receivables origidalby the Company should be covered by SFAS
No.34. Accounts receivable are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period an
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events th
occurred akr the initial recognition of the accounts receivable, the estimated future cash flows of the asset
have been affected.

The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset carrying amount and tt
present value of estimatégture cash flows, after taking into account the related collateral and guarantees,
di scounted at the receivablebds original effecti

The carrying amount of the accounts receivable is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Inventories

Inventories including merchandise and warkprocess are stated at the lower of cost (weightedage

cost) or net realizable value item by item, except for those that may be appropriate to group items of simila
or related inventories. Net feable value is the estimated selling price of inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. The calculation of the cost of inventory i
derived using the weightealverage method.

Buildings and Lands Consignedo Constructing Firm

Inventories of LED are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value item by item, except for those tha
may be appropriate to group as similar items or related inventories. Land acquired before construction i
classified asdnd held for development, and then reclassifiethad held under development after LED
begins its construction project Prepayments for licensing and other miscellaneous costs have been
capitalized as part of inventory.

When using the completembntra¢ method for its construction projects, LED recognizes the proceeds from
customers as advances from customers for land and building before the construction project is complete
After completion of the construction project and ownership is transferib@ tmustomers, LED recognizes

the relevant revenues.
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When using percentagd-c o mp|l et i on met hod, profits are reco
percentage of completion of individual contracts, commencing when the work performed under the
contracs reaches a point where the final costs can be estimated with reasonable accuracy. Changes in jt
performance, job conditions and estimated profitability may result in revisions to costs and income and are
recognized in the period in which the revisioms determined. If the current estimates of total contract
revenue and contract cost indicate a loss, a provision for the entire loss on the contract is recorded in tt
period in which it becomes evident.

The percentage of completion is measured basedthen completion of the contract milestones
predetermined by the architects and enginee@onstruction in progress is stated at cost plus (less)
amounts associated with estimated profit (loss) recognized on the basis of the peufechageetion
method.

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method

Investments in companies in whithe Companyexercises significant influence over the operating and
financial policy decisions are accounted for by the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investmenis initially stated at cost and subsequently adjusted for its proportionate share in the net earning
of the investee companies. Any cash dividends received are recognized as a reduction in the carryin
value of the investments.

Gains or losses on Isa from the Company to equity method investees wherein Chunghwa exercises
significant influence over these equity method investees are deferred in proportioen @mpan§ s
ownership percentage in the investees until such gains or losses are regdizghl ttansactions with third
parties. Gains or losses on sales from equity method investees to Chunghwa are deferred in proportion
Chunghwadés ownership percentages in the investe
parties.

When the Company subscribes for additional investees shares at a percentage different from its existin
ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment in the investee differs from the
amount of the Companydyt. Fhe &ompanyprécordsisuech d differensetag and s
adjustment to longerm investments with the corresponding amount charged or credited to additional
paidin capital to the extent available, with the balance charged to retained earnings.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost plus a revaluation increment, if any, less accumulate
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. The interest costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction of a qifging asset are capitalized as property, plant and equipment. Major
renewals and betterments are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

When an indication of impairment is identified, any excess of the carrying amountasisanover its
recoverable amount is recognized as a loss. If the recoverable amount increases in a subsequent peri
the amount previously recognized as impairment would be reversed and recognized as a gain. Howeve
the adjusted amount may not exceth@ carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, as if no impairment loss had been recognized.

An i mpairment | oss on a revalued asset is charg
extent available, withhie balance recognized as a loss in earnings. If the recoverable amount increases ir
a subsequent period, the amount previously recognized as impairment loss could be reversed ar
recognized as a gain, with the irnecmmacimeinntgd.credi t
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Depreciation expense is computed using the stréilghimethod over the following estimated service lives:
land improvements 2 to 30 years; buildings 3 to 60 years; computer equipmen to 15 years;
telecommunication equipmen® to 20 years; transportation equipmer& to 10 years; and miscellaneous
equipment 2 to 12 years.

Upon sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment, the related cost, accumulated depreciatior
accumulated impairment losses and any unrealized reiauatcrement are deducted from the
corresponding accounts, and any gain or loss is recorded agpammting gains or losses in the period of
sale or disposal.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets mainly include 3G Concession, computer software, @atemfsodwill.

The 3G Concession is valid through December 31, 2018. The 3G Concession fee is amortized on
straightline basis from the date operations commence through the date the license expires. Compute
software costs and patents are amortizéaguthe straightine method over the estimated useful lives of 2

to 20 years.

When an indication of impairment is identified for intangible assets other than goodwill, any excess of the
carrying amount of an asset over its recoverable amount is reco@sizeloss. If the recoverable amount
increases in a subsequent period, the amount previously recognized as impairment would be reversed a
recognized as a gain. However, the adjusted amount may not exceed the carrying amount that would ha
been detenined, as if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid for business acquisition over the fair value o
identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually. If an everd occur
circumstances change which indicates that the fair value of goodwill is below its carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognized. A subsequent reversal of such impairment loss is not allowed.

Idle Assets
Idle assets are carried at the loweraafaverable amount or carrying amount.
Pension Costs

Pension cost under a defined benefit plan is determined by actuarial valuafionsibutions made under
a defined contribution plan are recognized as pension cost during the period in which emgogees
services.

Income Tax

The Company applies int@eriod allocations for its income tax, whereby deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the tax effects of temporary differences and unused tax credits. Valuation
allowances a provided to the extent, if any, that it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets
will not be realized. A deferred tax asset or liability is classified as current or noncurrent in accordance
with the classification of its related assetiability. However, if a deferred tax asset or liability does not
relate to an asset or liability in the financial statements, then it is classified as either current or noncurren
based on the expected length of time before it is realized or settled.

Any tax credits arising from purchases of machinery, equipment and technology, research and developme
expenditures, personnel training, and investments in important technology based enterprises are recogniz
using the flowthrough method.

Adjustments® pri or yearsdé tax I|liabilities are added t
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Income taxes (10%) on undistributed earnings is recorded in the year of stockholders approval which is th
year subsequent to the year the earnings are gesherate

Share-based Compensation

Employee stock options granted on or after January 1, 2008 are accounted for using fair value method i
accordance with SFAS Nbas88, PaApmentunding for Sh

Employee stock options granted between January 1, &tDecember 31, 2007 were accounted for under
the interpretations issued by the Accounting Re
Company adopted the intrinsic value method, under which compensation cost was amortized over thi
vesting peiod.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues are recognized when they are realized or realizable and earned. Revenues are realized
realizable and earnaghen the Company has persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the goods have bee
delivered or the servicesabe been rendered to the customer, the sales price is fixed or determinable and
collectibility is reasonably assured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amoul
agreed between the Company ahd tustomers for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
sales discounts and volume rebates. For trade receivables due within one year from the balance sheet d:
as the nominal value of the consideration to be received approximates ital@@rand transactions are
frequent, fair value of the consideration is not determined by discounting all future receipts using an
imputed rate of interest.

Usage revenues from fixdihe services (including local, domestic long distance and internationgl
distance), cellular services, Internet and data services, and interconnection and call transfer fees from oth
telecommunications companies and carriers are billed in arrears and are recognized based upon minutes
traffic processed when the semgcare provided in accordance with contract terms.

Other revenues are recognized as follows: (ajtiome subscriber connection fees (on fixat services)

are deferred and recognized over the average expected customer service periods, (b) mortrly fees
fixed-line mobile, Internet and data services) are accrued every month, and (c) prepaid servicisdfixed
mobile, Internet and data services) are recognized as income based upon actual usage by customers or w
the right to use those services egpi

Where the Company enters into transactions which involve both the provision of air time bundled with
products such as 3G data card and handset, total consideration received from handsets in the:
arrangements are allocated and measured using unascounting within the arrangement based on
relative fair values limited to the amount that is not contingent upon the delivery of other items or services.
Where the Company sells products to third party cellular phone stores the Company recordstthaldi

of the products, typically handsets, as gross revenue when the Company is the primary obligor in the
arrangement and when title is passed and the products are accepted by the stores.

Expense Recognition

The costs of providing services and opi@gexpenses are recognized as incurred.
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. EFFECT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
The Company adopted the newlye vi sed St atements of Financi al A

I nstruments, o (ASFAS No. 3 4 dNhen lare enterprisei adogts ther revised J a
provisions, the initial recognition of loans and receivables shall be accounted for under SFAS No. 34.

. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

September 30
2012 2011
Cash
Cash on hand $ 228679 $ 168093
Bank deposits 7,385,134 4,662,692

Negotiable certificate of deposit, annual yield ratenging from
0.70%0.96%and 0.6590.95% for 2012 and 2011, respectiv 30,429,089 37,750,000
38,042,902 42,580,785

Cash equivalents
Commercial paper, annual yield rateanging from 0.719%40.80%
and 0.45%0.70% for 2012 and 2011, respectively 780,553 6,222,726

$ 38,823,455 $ 48,803,511

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFITORL OSS

September 30
2012 2011
Derivatives- financial assets
Currency swap contracts $ 32,393 $ 191
Forward exchange contracts 285 4,154
Index future contracts - 1,918
32,678 6,263
Designated financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
Convertible bonds - 71,471
32,678 77,734
Derivatives- financial liabilities
Forward exchange contracts $ 222 $ 71
Currency swap contracts - 82,269
$ 222 $ 82,340

The Company entered into currency swap contracts, forward exchange contracts and index future contrac
to reduce its exposure to foreign currency risk and variability in opgratisults due to fluctuations in
exchange rates and stock prices. However, the aforementioned derivatives did not meet the criteria fc
hedge accounting and were classified as financial assets or financial liabilities held for trading.
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6.

Outstanding curmcy swap contracts and forward exchange contracts as of September 30, 2012 and 201
were as follows:

Contract Amount
Currency Maturity Period (In Thousands)
September 30, 2012
Currency swap contracts USS$/NTS$ 2012.1011 US$66000/NT$1,967,24¢
Forward exchange contractbuy NT$/USS 2012.10 NT$211,711/US$7,220
September 30, 2011
Currency swap contracts USS$/NTS$ 2011.1012 US$58,000/NT$1,685,0€
US$/NTS 2011.12 US$4,000/NT$122,000
Forward exchange contractbuy NT$/US$ 2011.10 NT$267,872/US$8,916

The Company did not have any outstanding index future contracts as of September 30, 2012.
Outstanding index future contracts as of September 30, 2011 were as follows:

Contract
Amount
Maturity Period Units (In Thousands)

September 30, 2011

TAIFEX futures

X 2011.10 26 NT$39,092

X 2011.11 6 NT$8,568

TE 2011.10 19 NT$20,263

TF 2011.10 4 NT$3,399

TF 2011.11 9 NT$7,340

As of September 3@011, the deposits paid for outstanding index future contracts were $4,146 thousand.

The convertible bonds owned by subsidiaries are hybrid financial instruments that are designated to b
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognieathings.

Net gains (losses) arising from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 were $43,291 thousand (including realized settlement gain
$12,009 thousand and vatiem gain of $31,282 thousand) and $(78,217) thousand (including realized
settlement gain of $37,515 thousand and valuation loss of $115,732 thousand), respectively.

AVAILABLE -FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

September 30
2012 2011

Domestic isted stocks $ 3,261,868 $ 394,102
Openend mutual funds 2,328,326 2,119,285
Corporate bonds 50,755 76,413
Foreign listed stocks 11,703 -

5,652,652 2,589,800
Less: Current portion 2,390,784 2,544,351

$ 3,261,868 $ 45,449
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The board of directors of Chunghwa resolved to acquire 263,622 thousand common shares of China Airlin
Lt d. (ACALO) a for tige thiee tahthspeaded Malcka 31,22012hunghwa expected to

hold it as longerm investment and classified it as availdiolesale financial assetsnoncurrent. CAL
engages mainly in air transportation business.

After evaluating the availabl®r-sale financial assets, CHletermined that some investments were
impaired and reaggized an impairment loss 26,779%thousand for the nine months ended September 30,
2012.

Movements of unrealized gain (loss) on availdblesale financial assets were as follows:

Nine Months Ended September 3

2012 2011
Balance, beginnig of period $ 67,674 $ 176,048
Recognized in stockhol dersbd 306,830 (114,173%
Transferred to profit or loss (62,625 2,179
Balance, end of period $ 311,879 $ 64,050

. HELD -TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS
September 30
2012 2011

Corporate bonds, nominal interest rate ranging from 1-23%%

and 1.20%2.90% for 2012 and 2011, respectively; effective

interest rate ranging from 1.062089% and 1.0092.89% for

2012 and 2011, respectively $ 15,731115  $ 13,197,703
Bank debentures, nominal interest rate ranging from 1-25%%

and 1.37%2.11% for 2012 and 2011, respectively; effective

interest rate ranging from 1.15%40% and 1.25%2.45% for

2012 and 2011, respectively 1,255,684 1,106046
16,986,799 14,303,749
Less: Current portion 2,981,338 1,621,912

$ 14,005,461 $ 12,681,837

. ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS

Nine Months Ended September 3

2012 2011
Balance, beginning of period $ 2,423,012 $ 2,551,464
Provision for (reversal of) doubtful accounts (1,462,798 81,254
Accounts receivable written off (110,258 (176,297
Impact on changes of consolidated subsidiaries - 1,747
Balance, end of pimd $ 849,956 $ 2,458,168

Chunghwa considered the results of procedures implemented to enhance the collection of accour
receivable as well as the experience of decreases in uncollected receivables, and decided to reverse
allowance for doubtfiaccounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.
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9. OTHER MONETARY ASSETS - CURRENT

September 30
2012 2011
Accrued custodial receipts from MOD service $ 176,799 $ 93,583
Others 1,591,368 1,830,373

$ 1,768,167 $ 1,923,956

10. INVENTORIES

September 30
2012 2011

Merchandise $ 3,038,523 $ 2,823,195
Work in process 690,507 577,621
Material 33,165 -

3,762,195 3,400,816
Land held for sale 218,150 315062
Land and building held for sale 42,948 -
Land held for development 35,816 35,816
Construction in progress - 636,689
Land held under development - 495,513

4,059,109 $ 4,883,896

The operating costeelated to inventories were $30,439,688 thousand (including the valuation loss on
inventories of $20,670 thousand) and $24,666,236 thousand (including valuation loss on inventories o
$294,360 thousand) for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 ance2péctively.

Land held for sale on September 30, 2012 was féBHLii (A), WanXi and Covent projects. Land and
building held for sale on September 30, 2012 was for Gldagg project. Land held for sale on
September 30, 2011 was for W&hand Li-Shui (B) projects.

Land held under development and construction in progress on September 30, 2011 was f@i&uang
Li-Shui (A), and Covent projects. Guabgang project was completed in June 2012, and reclassified to
land and building held for sale Li-Shui (A) project was completed in April 2012, and reclassified to land
held for sale. Covent project was completed in 2011, and reclassified to land held for sale.

LED recognizes the relevant revenues of Gurang project by percentage of completimethod. The
related information were as follows (in thousands):

September 30,
2011
Percentage of completion method
GuangDiang project
Contract price $ 983,129
Estimated construction cost $ 425,203
Land held under development $ 64,987
(Continued)
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11.

12.

September 30,

2011
Construction in progress
Construction cost $ 268,000
Recognized cumulative gain 365,330
$ 633,330
Deferred marketing expenses (classified as other current assets) $ 20,570
Advance from land and building (classified as other current liabilities) $ 178,882
Percentage of completion 73%
Expected year of completion 2012
(Concluded)
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
September 30
2012 2011
Spare parts $ 4,171,910 $ 2,689,682
Prepaid expenses 4,041,420 3,573,167
Prepaid rents 1,007,069 1,092,023
Miscellaneous 459,049 868,743

$ 9,679,448 $ 8,223,615

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING EQUITY METHOD
September 30
2012 2011
% of % of
Carrying Owner- Carrying Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
Nonlisted
Taiwan International Standard Electronics Cc

Ltd. (ATI SEO0) $ 594,866 40 $ 546,867 40
ST2 Satellite VeBodur ¢ 548,243 38 442,516 38
Senao Networ ks, Il nc. 390,257 40 321,624 41
Il nternati onal I ntegr 268,414 33 259,082 33
ViettetCHT Co., L€HTO)Y AV 262,852 30 262,528 30
Huada Digital Corpor 245,214 50 250,374 50
Skysoft Co., Ltd. (A 122,988 30 105,846 30
Dian Zuan Intergrating Marketing Co., Ltd.

(ADZI Mo) 120,499 33 110,711 40
Kingwayt ek Technol ogy 72,253 33 70,028 33
Sonet Entertai nmeniei 32,198 30 34,921 30
HopeTech Technol ogi e 20,961 45 19,952 45
Xiamen Sertec Busiiss Technology Co., Ltd.

(ASerteco) 9,191 49 1,678 49
Panda Monium Company Ltd. - 43 - 43

$ 2,687,936 $ 2,426,127
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13.

I nfoExpl orer (ssued new shdres a$ fhé EoBsidgration to merge wighnational
Integrated System, Inc. andTeYou International, Inc. on April 1, 2011. After the merger, IFE became

the surviving entity and was renamed as I nterr
Integrated System, Inc. andTeYou International, Inc. were dissolved. As a result of the additional
shares being issued by IFE in connection with

decreased from 49% to 33% after the omeung2r20ll,and
Chunghwa lost control of the board of directors.

Chunghwa invested in HDD in September 2011 by investing $250,000 thousand cash to acquire 50% of it
shares and the rest of 50% ownership interest was held by HTC Corpafafiod T. C Affer the
stockhol dersd meeting of HDD held on March 2, 2
seats. Thus, both entities do not obtain control over HDD. HDD engages mainly in providing software
service.

Chunghwa, President Chain Store Caogtion and EasyCard Corporation established a joint venture,
DZIM, in May 2011. Chunghwa invested $114,640 thousand cash and held 40% ownership of DZIM in
May 2011. Chunghwa participated in the capital increase of DZIM by investing $14,360 thousarnd in Ma
2012 but did not subscribe the shares proportionately. Thus, the ownership interest decreased from 40
to 33% after the capital increase of DZIM. DZIM engages mainly in information technology service and
general advertisement service.

COl participatedn the capital increase of Sertec by investing $11,552 thousand in February 2012. COI
remained 49% ownership of Sertec after the capital increase.

Except for the carrying value and net equity in earnings of HopeTech were calculated based on reviewe
financial statements as of and for the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the aggregate carrying valt
of the equity method investments whose financial statements have not been reviewed were $2,666,97
thousand and $2,426,127 thousand as of Septemb@03R,and 2011, respectively. The net equity in
earnings of such equity investees were $460,623 thousand and $236,238 thousand for the nine mont
ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST
September 30
2012 2011
% of % of
Carrying Owner- Carrying Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship

Nortlisted
Taipei Financial CenteCorp.( A TF C0 ) $ 1,789,530 12 $ 1,789,530 12
Industrial Bank of Taiwan Il Venture Capital

Co., Ltd.( A TIBT 180,000 17 200,000 17
Innovation Works Development Fund, L.P.

(Al WDFO0) 108,476 4 38,035 4
i D Branding Ventures 89,553 11 99,504 11
Gl obal Mobil e Corp. 77,018 3 127,018 8
Tons Lightology Inc. 66,150 4 66,150 4
Tatung Technology Inc. 60,081 11 59,185 11
MEDIAPRO TECHNOLOGY LTD. 44,871 1 - -
Uni Di splay I nc. (AUn 32,410 2 55,450 3

(Continued)
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September 30

2012 2011
% of % of
Carrying Owner- Carrying Owner-
Amount ship Amount ship
I nnovation Works Lim $ 31,391 2 $ 31,391 2
VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. 29,371 - 29,371 -
Procrystal Technol og 24,319 2 78,000 2
Al der Optomechanical 23,310 2 29,750 -
Ultra Fine Optical Technology Co., Ltd.

(AUl traFineo) 18,000 8 27,000 8
N.T.U. Innovation Incubation Corporation 12,000 9 12,000 9
Digimax I nc. (ADI Go) 10,928 4 15,080 4
CoaTronics 1Inc (ACo 8,400 6 12,000 9
Ai de Energy (fACayman

(AAIi deod) 4,829 1 29,940 1
3 Link Information Service Co., Ltd. 3,450 10 3,450 10
Fashion Guide Co. |, L 2,000 2 - -
RPTI I ntergroup I nte - 10 34,500 10
CQiEnergy Infocom I nc - 18 20,000 18
Taimide Technology Ltd. - - 18,380 1
Hiroca Holdings Ltd. - - 17,847 -
Optivision Technology Inc. - - 10,189 -
Win Semiconductors Corp. - - 10,127 -
A2peak Power Co. , Lt - 3 9,858 3
Tatung Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd.

(ATFChemical so0) - - 9,135 -
SuperAlloy Industrial Co., Ltd. - - 7,123 -
DelSolar Co., Ltd. - - 6,096 -
Subtron Technology Co., Ltd. - - 4,947 -
Cando Corporation - - 3,653 -
XinTec Inc. - - 1,078 -
G-TECH Optoelectronics Corporation - - 928 -
Essence Technol adgywy)S - 7 - 7
eASPNet Inc. - - - 2

$ 2,616,087 $ 2,856,715
(Concluded)

The above investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably masured are carried at original cost.

IBT Il completed a capital reduction in June 2012. The Company has re$20,600 thousand from the
capital reduction.

The Company did not recognize the impairment loss for the nine months esgtechBer 30, 2011.

After evaluating the financial assets carried at cost, the Congpeteymined the following investments
were impaired and recognized impairment losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.
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14.

15.

Ended
September 30,
2012
Procrystal $ 43,866
UniDisplay 23,040
UltraFine 9,000
Fashion Guide 8,000
Alder 7,090
CQi 6,000
Aide 4,551
DIG 4,152
CoaTronics 3,600
TFChemicals 2,315
$ 111,614
OTHER MONETARY ASSETS - NONCURRENT
September 30
2012 2011
Piping Fund $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
As part of the governmentoés effort to upgrade

and other publicutility companies were required by the ROC government to contribute a total of
$1,000,000 thousand to a Piping Fund administered by the Taipei City Government.

Nine Months

to finance various telecommunications infrastructure projects.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Computer equipment
Telecanmunications equipment
Transportation equipment
Miscellaneous equipment
Total cost

Revaluation increment on land

Accumulated depreciation
Land improvements
Buildings
Computer equipment

September 30

2012

$ 103,882,897

2011

$ 103,698,711

1,576,513 1,552,425
67,726,707 67,575,171
14,991,833 14,624,276

663,029,540 648,230,088
3,028,020 2,405,725
7,104,483 6,584,215

861,339,993 844,670,611
5,762,418 5,762,611

867,102,411 850,433,222

1,083,264 1,037,037
20,653,161 19,467,520
11,234,572 11,035,608

(Continued)
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16.

September 30

2012 2011
Telecommunications equipment $ 543,482,163 $ 526,974,190
Transportation equipment 1,191,230 1,254,259
Miscellaneous equipment 5,590,764 5,382,528
583,235,154 565,151,142
Accumulated impairment 1,257,050 -
Construction in progress and advances related to acquisition of
equipment 17,198,834 14,458,045
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 299,809,041 $ 299,740,125
(Concluded)

Pursuant to the related regulation, Chunghwa revalued idlsdamed as of April 30, 2000 based on the
publicly announced value on July 1, 1999. These revaluations which have been approved by the Ministr
of Auditing resulted in increases in the carrying values of property, plant and equipment of $5,986,074
thousanl, liabilities for land value incremental tax of $211,182 thousandsand ¢ k ho | d-ethes 6 e
adjustmentsf $5,774,892 thousand.

The amendment to the Land Tax Act, relating to the article to permanently lower land value incremental
tax, went effetive from February 1, 2005. In accordance with the lowered tax r@esnghwa
recomputed its land value incremental tax, and reclassified the reserve for land value incremental tax c
$116,196 thousand ®t o ¢ k h o | d ethes alljusemgnisi Als gf September 30, 2012, the unrealized
revaluation increment was decreased to $5,760,582 thousardisposal ofthe revalued assets and
recognition of impairment loss.

Chunghwa determined that partial land and building were impaired and recognized amanp#&ss of
$1,254,996 thousand for the nine months ended September 30, 2012. Due to the impairment, th
unrealized revaluation increment was decreased by $2,054 thousand. Idle asset was recognized
impairment loss of $4,315 thousand.

Depreciation epense on property, plant and equipment for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 an
2011 was $23,274,010 thousand a8,882,12%housand, respectively.The capitalized interest expense

for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 waso$26rit and $68 thousand, respectively.
The capitalized interest rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011 wete289%23%

and 1.10%1.22%, respectively.

SHORT-TERM LOANS
September 30
2012 2011
Unsecured loansannuarate- 1.25%2.50% and 1.20%.53% for
2012 and 2011, respectively $ 130,000 $ 135,000
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17.

18.

19.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

September 30
2012 2011
Accrued salary and compensation $ 6,426,396 $ 7,174,712
Accrued empl oy e are@tomto direcors and a
supervisors 1,797,872 1,798,566
Accrued franchise fees 1,679,264 1,728,613
Accrued maintenance fees 1,054,083 951,737
Other accrued expenses 2,446,899 2,003,129
$ 13,404,514 $ 13,666,757
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
September 30
2012 2011
Advance receipts $ 10,972,390 $ 11,980,570
Payables to equipment suppliers 1,879,036 1,824,111
Amounts collected for others 1,367,982 1,265,870
Payablesd contractors 1,270,578 1,718,506
Refundable customersd deposi 1,163,779 1,153,397
Miscellaneous 3,705,709 3,701,580
$ 20,359,474 $ 21,644,034
LONG-TERM LOANS (INCLUDING LONG -TERM LOANS - CURRENT PORTION)
September 30
2012 2011
Secured loansannual rate 1.13% and 1.10%.83% for 2012 and
2011, respectively $ 1,650,000 $ 2,153,539
Unsecured loansannual rate 2.01% and 2.0192.17% for 2012
and 2011, respectively 33,489 133957
1,683,489 2,287,496
Less: Current portion of lorerm loans 33,489 304,007
$ 1,650,000 $ 1,983,489

LED obtained a secured loan from Chang Hwa Bank in September 2010. Interest is paid monthly. LELC
will repay $300000 thousand and $1,350,000 thousand in December 2014 and September 2015
respectively.

CHIEF obtained an unsecured loan from Bank of Taiwan in January 2009. Interest and principal amoun

are paid monthly from January 2009 and due in January 2013.

CHPT obtained a secured loan from the E.SUN Commercial Bank in February 2009. Interest and the

principal were paid monthly from March 2009 and all were repaid in February 2012.
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20. MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company c | assts anfl iliabilities lofEtBed constraction operations as current and
noncurrent according to the length of the operating cycle of the construction operations. Maturity analysis

of LEDOG6s related assets and I|iabilities was as
September 30, 2012
Within Over
One Year One Year Total
Assets
Accounts receivable $ 2,635 $ - $ 2,635
Inventories 261,098 35,816 296,914
Deferred expenses (classified as other curren
assets) 104 - 104
$ 263,837 $ 35816 $ 299,653
Liabilities
Trade notes and accounts payable $ 47 $ - $ 47
Accrued expenses 32,823 - 32,823
Payables to contractors (classified as other cu
liabilities) 32,175 - 32,175
Advance from of land and building (classified :
other current liabilities) 9,868 - 9,868
$ 74913 $ - $ 74913
September 30, 2011
Within Over
One Year One Year Total
Assets
Inventories $ - 1,483,080 $ 1,483,080
Deferred expenses (classified as other curren
assets) - 32,468 32,468
Restricted assets - 47,031 47,031
$ - $ 1,562,579 $ 1,562,579
Liabilities
Payables to contractors (classified as other cL
liabilities) $ 23,327 $ 23,327
Advance from of land and building (classified
other current liabilities) - 604,941 604,941
$ - $ 628,268 $ 628,268
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2. STOCKHOLDERSG EQUITY

Under Chunghwatés Articles of Il ncorporation, Ch
which is divided into 12,000,000 thousand common shares (at $10 par value per share), among whic
7,757,447 thousand common shanesissued and outstanding as of September 30, 2012.

For the purpose of privatizing Chunghwa, the MOTC sold 1,109,750 thousand common shares of
Chunghwa in an international of fering of securi
amountingto 110,975 thousand units (one ADS represents ten common shares) on the New York Stock
Exchange on July 17, 2003. Afterwards, the MOTC sold 1,350,682 thousand common shares in the forr
of ADS amounting to 135,068 thousand units on August 10, 2005. udrgly, the MOTC and Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. sold 505,389 thousand and 58,959 thousand common shares of Chunghwa, respectivel
in the form of ADS totally amounting to 56,435 thousand units on September 29, 2006. The MOTC and
Taiwan Mobile Co., Ltd. haveold 3,024,780 thousand common shares in the form of ADS amounting to
302,478 thousand units. As of September 30, 2012, the outstanding ADSs were 343,643 thousan
common shares, which equaled approximately 34,364 thousand units and represented 4.43% ¢
Chunghwaodos total outstanding common shares.

The ADS holders generally have the same rights and obligations as other common stockholders, subject
the provision of relevant laws. The exercise of such rights and obligations shall comply with the related
regulations and deposit agreement, which stipulate, among other things, that ADS holders can, throug
deposit agents:

a. Exercise their voting rights,
b. Sell their ADSs, and
c. Receve dividends declared and subscribe to the issuance of new shares.

Underthe ROC Company Law, additional paidcapital may only be utilized to offset deficits. However,

the additional paiin capital from shares issued in excess of par and donations may be capitalized, which
however is limited to a certain percentage of I€lguh w a 6-is capital.i tHowever, where a company
undergoes an organizational change (such as a merger, acquisition, or reorganization) that results in tl
capitalization of undistributed earnings after the organizational change, the above restrictinot dpply.

Under the revised Company Law issued on January 4, #td 2forementioneddditional paiein capital

may also be distributed in cash. hél additional paidn capital from longterm investments may not be

used for any purpose.

In addition,before distributing a dividend or making any other distribution to stockholders, Chunghwa must
pay all outstanding taxes, offset deficits in prior years and set aside a legal reserve equal to 10% of its n
income, and depending on its business needsjaireenents, may also set asmrereverse special reserves

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, no less than 50% of the remaining earnings comprising
remaining balance of net income, if any, plus cumulative undistributed earnings shallribeiteéd in the
following order: (a) from 2% to 5% of distributable earnings shall be distributed to employees as
employee bonus; (b) no more than 0.2% of distributable earnings shall be distributed to board of director:
and supervisors as remuneratiangd (c) cash dividends to be distributed shall not be less than 50% of the
total amount of dividends to be distributed. If cash dividend to be distributed is less than $0.10 per share
such cash dividend shall be distributed in the form of common shares.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, the accrual amounts for bonuses to employe
and remuneration to directors and supervisors were accrued based on past experiences and probable amc
to be paid in accor da oftneorpavatidntand GrplanmegtdtionaGaidancd fortthie c |

Empl oyeeds Bonus Distribution of Chunghwa Tel ec
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If the initial accrual amounts of the aforementioned bonus are significantly different from the amounts
proposed by the board of directorse tdifference is charged to the earnings of the year making the initial
estimate. Otherwise, the difference between initial accrual amount and the amount resolved in the

sharehol ders6é6 meeting iIs charged t ahangbie aceoantingi n g
estimate.

Under the ROC Company Law, the appropriation for legal reserve shall be made until the accumulatec
reserve equals the aggregate par value of the outstanding capital stock of Chunghwa. This reserve c
only be used to off$ea deficit, or,under the revised Company Law issued on January 4, 2012,tlven

| egal reserve has exc e eiddaeypital,2hd ékcessfmay bk wansteweoh o aapiyald s
or distributed in cash.

The appropriations and distributions o£tB011 and 2010 earnings of Chunghwa have been approved by
the stockholders on June 22, 2012 and June 24, 2011 as follows:

Appropriation of Earnings Dividends Per Share
For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal For Fiscal
Year 2011 Year 2010 Year 2011 Year 2010

Legal reserve $ 4,706,838 $ 4,760,890
Cash dividends 42,361,864 42,854,462 $5.46 $5.52

The amounts for bonuses to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors approved in t
sharehol der s @& 22n20&2t were g2,04d000902housand and $44,446 thousand, respectively.
There was no difference between the initial ac
meeting of the aforementioned bonuses to employees and the remunerationdesdiret supervisors.

The amounts for bonuses to employees and remuneration to directors and supervisors approved in tt
stockhol dersd meeting on June 24, 2011, wer e $
There was no difference betweerh e i ni t i al accrual amounts and

meeting of the aforementioned bonuses to employees and the remuneration to directors and supervisors.

I nformation on the appropriation of C heuatiog flow a 6 s
directors and supervisors approved by the stockholders is available at the Market Observation Post Syste
website.

The stockhol der s, at the stockholdersé meeting
$19,393,617 thousand inapgital of Chunghwa by a cash distribution to its stockholders. The
abovementioned 2010 capital reduction proposal was effectively approved by FSC. The board of director
of Chunghwa was authorized to designate the record date of capital reduction et®lr @6, 2010.
Subsequently, the stock transfer record date of capital reduction was designated as January 15, 2011. T
amount due to stockholders for capital reduction was $19,393,617 thousand and such cash payment
stockholders was made in Januafji 1.
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22. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

SENAO shardb a s e d

compensation

pl ans

Stock Options Units

(ASENAO Pl anso)

Exercise Price

Effective Date Grant Date (Thousand) (NT$)

2004.12.01 2005.11.28 1,500 $13.5
(Original price $18.3)

2005.09.30 2006.05.05 10,000 12.1
(Original price $16.9)

2007.10.16 2007.10.31 6,181 42.6
(Original price $44.2)

17,681

Each option is eligible to subscribe for one common share when exegcisabider the terms of the Plans,
the options are granted at an exercise price eq
on the TSE on the higher of closing price or par value. The SENAO Plans have exercise price adjustmer
formula umn the issuance of new common shares, capitalization of retained earnings and/or capital
reserves, stock split as well as distribution of cash dividends (except for 2007 Plan), except (i) in the case c
issuance of new shares in connection with mergersratite case of cancellation of outstanding shares in
connection with capital reduction (2007 Plan is out of this exception), and (ii) except if the exercise price
after adjustment exceeds the exercise price before adjustment. The options of all tlaeePlatid for

six years and the graded vesting schedule for which 50% of option granted will vest two years after the
grant date and another two tranches of 25%, each will vest three and four years after the grant dat

respectively.
Information about ENAO6s outstanding stock options for th
2011 were as follows:
Stock Options Outstanding
2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Number of Average Number of Average
Options  Exercise Price  Options  Exercise Price
(Thousand) (NTS) (Thousand) (NTS)
Options outstanding, beginning of perioc 2,278 $38.85 5,103 $36.15
Options exercised (1,119 35.08 (2,107 34.09
Options expired )] 12.10 (39 41.97
Options outstandig, as of September 30 1,158 42.60 2,962 32.44
Options exercisable, as of September 3| 1,158 1,606
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As of September 30, 2012, i nformation about S
follows:

Options Outstandng Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted Weighted
average Average Average
Number of Remaining Exercise Number of Exercise
Range of Exercise Options Contractual Price Options Price
Price (NT$) (Thousand)  Life (Years) (NT$) (Thousand) (NT$)
$42.6 1,158 1.17 $42.6 1,158 $42.6
As of September 30, 2011, i nformati on about S|
follows:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted Weighted
average Average Average
Number of Remaining Exercise Number of Exercise
Range of Exercise Options Contractual Price Options Price
Price (NT$) (Thousand) Life (Years) (NT$) (Thousand) (NT$)
$12.1 502 0.57 $12.1 502 $12.1
42.6 2,460 2.17 42.6 1,104 42.6

No compensation cost was recognized under the intrinsic value method for the nine months ende
September 30, 2012 and 2011. Had SENAO used the fair value method to recognize the compensatic
cost, there would have been no significant impadherconsolidated net income and earnings per share.

Had SENAO used the fair value method to evaluate the options using theSlaales model, the
assumptions of SENAO for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 would have been as follows:

October 3], May 5, November 28,
2007 2006 2005
Expected dividend yield 1.49% - -
Risk free interest rate 2.00% 1.75% 2.00%
Expected life 4.375years 4.375years 4.375years
Expected volatility 39.82% 39.63% 43.40%
Weightedaverage fair alue of grants $13.69 $5.88 $6.93

The board of SENAO resolved to authorize 10,000 thousand units of stock options on May 2, 2012. Eacl
option is eligible to subscribe for one common share when exercisable. The aforementiorbdssthre
compensatiomplan (2012 Plan) was effectively approved by FSC as of May 28, 2012. Under the terms of
the 2012 Pl an, the options are granted at an e
common shares listed on the TSE on the higher of closing pricarwalue on the grant date. The 2012
Plan has exercise price adjustment formula upon the issuance of new common shares, capitalization
retained earnings and/or capital reserves, stock split as well as distribution of cash dividends, except (i) i
the case of issuance of new shares in connection with mergers and in the case of cancellation of outstandi
shares in connection with capital reduction, and (ii) except if the exercise price after adjustment exceeds th
exercise price before adjustment. eTaptions are valid for six years and based on the graded vesting
schedule, 50% of option granted will vest two years after the grant date and another two tranches of 259
will vest three and four years after the grant date, respectively. As of Octol#3126,SENAO has not
granted options to employees.
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CHTPshardbased compensation plan (ACHTP Pl ano) desc

Effective Date Grant Date Stock Options Units Exercise Price (NT$)
2007.08.15 2007.05.10 1,000 $12.61

CHTP granted.,000 options to some of its employees in December 2008. Under the terms of CHTP Plan,
each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one thousand common shares when exercisable. Tt
options are valid for 5 years and based on the graded vesting ls;hedutranches of 30% of option will

vest two and three years after the grant date, respectively, and the rest of 40% will vest four years after tt
grant date. There is exercise price adjustment formula upon the issuance of new common share:
capitalization of retained earnings and/or capital reserves, stock split, issuance of new shares in connectio
with mergers, issuance of global depositary receipts as well as distribution of cash dividends, except if the
exercise price after adjustment exceedsttezcise price before adjustment.

I nformation about CHTPG6s outstanding stock opti
2011 were as follows:

Stock Options Outstanding

2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Exercise Price  Number of Exercise Price
Options (NT$) Options (NT$)
Options outstanding, beginning of perioc 920 $10.10 960 $12.11
Options exercised - - - -
Options expired - - - -
Options outstanding, end périod 920 10.10 960 12.11
Options exercisable, end of period 552 288
As of September 30, 2012, i nformation about CHT
Options Outstanding
Weighted- Options Exercisable
average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Exercise  Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise
Price (NT$) Options Life (Years) Price (NT$) Options Price (NT$)
$10.10 920 1.25 $10.10 552 $10.10
As of September 30, 2011, i nformation about CHT
Options Outstanding
Weighted- Options Exercisable
average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Exercise  Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise
Price (NT$) Options Life (Years)  Price (NT$) Options Price (NT$)
$12.11 960 2.25 $12.11 288 $12.11
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Compensation cost recognized was $2,601 thousand under the intrinsic value method for the himne mont
ended September 30, 2012. No compensation cost was recognized under the intrinsic value method fi
the nine months ended September 30, 2011.

23. COMPENSATION, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

Cost of Operating
Services Expenses Total
Compensation expense
Salaries $ 9921286 $ 8,567,375 $ 18,488,661
Insurance 861,717 722,559 1,584,276
Pension 1,361,100 990,773 2,351,873
Other compensation 6,498,176 4,578,905 11,077,081
$ 18,642,279 $ 14,859,612 $ 33,501,891
Depreciation expense $ 21,833,140 $ 1,440,870 $ 23,274,010
Amortization expense $ 912056 $ 184666 $ 1,096,722
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011
Cost of Operating
Services Expenses Total
Compensation expense
Salaries $ 9,448,212 $ 8,132,903 $ 17,581,115
Insurance 813,442 668,131 1,481,573
Pension 1,303,273 937,356 2,240,629
Other compensation 7,119,331 4,977,000 12,096,331

$ 18,684,258 $ 14,715,390 $ 33,399,648

Depreciation expense $ 21,773877 $ 1,308,252 $ 23,082,129
Amortization expense $ 880417 $ 159,593 $ 1,040,010

24. INCOME TAX
a. Income tax expense consisted of the following:

Nine Months Ended September 3

2012 2011
Income tax payable $ 6,066,715 $ 6,805,034
Foreign income tax 14,975 17,247
Income tx - deferred (20,800 (149,742
Adjust ments of prior yearsf¢ 5,791 40,012
Income tax $ 6,066,681 $ 6,712,551
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b. Net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) consisted of the following:

Current

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)
Unrealized accrued expense
Valuation loss on inventory
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain), net
Losscarryforward
Estimated warranty liabilities
Investment tax credits
Provision for doubtful accounts
Valuation loss (gain) on financial instruments, net
Other

Valuation allowance
Net deferred income tax asseturrent
Noncurrent

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

Accruel pension cost

Loss carryforward

Equity in losses of equity method investees

Impairment loss

Investment tax credit

Abandonment of equipmé not approved by National Tax
Administration

Other

Valuation allowance

Net deferred income tax assetsoncurrent

September 30

2012 2011
$ 36,502 $ 52,769
28,873 19,163
13,623 (5,709
11,100 -
6,988 9,467
3,065 1,730
2,398 194,535
(5,507 13,%3
9,766 55,524
106,808 341,436
- (194,263
$ 106,808 $ 147,173
$ 255,662 $ 316,079
120,576 79,021
73,553 26,022
11,396 70,123
3,487 5,881
10 27,672
(2,673 2,650
462,011 527,448
(92,798 (10,363
$ 369,213 $ 517,086

As of September 30, 2012, details for investment tax credit of CHPT are as follows:

Law/Statue Items

Remaining
Creditable

Amount

Statute for Upgrading Industrie Personnel training expenditures
Per®nnel training expenditures
Purchase of machinery and equipmi
Purchase of machinery and equipm

-37-

$ 1,486
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199
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As of September 30, 2012, loss

SEITS and SITJ are as follows:

carryforward of CHIEF, Unigate, CEI, LED, €D, STF, SITS,

Total Unused Expiry

Company Amounts Amounts Year

CHIEF $ 14,313 $ 2,338 2016

7,946 7,946 2017

816 816 2018

Unigate 13 13 2017

6 6 2018

8 8 2020

23 23 2021

17 17 2022

CEl 9 9 2021

12 12 2022

LED 5,426 4,174 2018

7,571 7,571 2019

7,957 7,957 2020

10,458 10,458 2021

CHI 3,376 574 2020

SFD 1,258 1,258 2021

3,184 3,184 2022

STF 10,612 10,612 2016

16,541 16,541 2017

SITS 16,159 16,159 2016

16,484 16,484 2017

SEITS 667 667 2016

969 969 2017

SITJ 10,955 10,955 2016

12,925 12,925 2017

$ 147,705 $ 131,676
. The related information under the Integrated Income Tax System is as follows:
September 30
2012 2011
Bal ance of | mput dBAbdPn Cr edi
Chunghwa $ 2,463 $ 1576

The actual creditable ratios distribution@funghwé s of 2011 and 2010 for

18.76%, respectively.
. Undistributed earnings information

Al l Chunghwaés earnings ¢ elbeenrapptopridtedpr i or t o Jun
Chunghwadés income tax returns have been exami
subsidiaries income tax returns have been examined by authorities through 2009: SENAO, CHPT
CHSI and SHE. The following subsidiarimeome tax returns have been examined by tax authorities

through 2010: CHIEF, Unigate, CHI, LED, YYRP and CIYP.

-38-



25. EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS was calculated as follows:

Weighted-
average Earnings Per Share
Amount (Numerator) Number of (Dollars)
Income Common Shares Income
Before Outstanding Before
Income Tax Net Income (Denominator)  Income Tax Net Income
Nine months ended September 30, 20:
Basic EPS
Income attributable to stockholders ¢
the paent $ 36,729,731  $ 30,957,707 7,757,447 $ 473 $ 399
Effect of dilutive potential common stoc
SENAOG6s stock opt (3,438 (3,439 -
Employee bonus - - 21,557
Diluted EPS
Income attributable to stockholders ¢
the parent (including effect of
dilutive potential common stock) $ 36,726,293  $ 30,954,269 7,779,004 $ 472 $ 398
Nine months ended September 30, 20:
Basic BPS
Income attributable to stockholders ¢
the parent $ 43,564,870  $ 37,065,217 7,800,070 $ 559 $ 475
Effect of dilutive potential common stoc
SENAOO6s stock opt (6,248 (6,248 -
Employee bonsi - - 22,242
Diluted EPS
Income attributable to stockholders ¢
the parent (including effect of
dilutive potential common stock) $ 43,558,622 $ 37,058,969 7,822,312 $ 557 $ 474

In March 2007, théARDF issued an Interpretation 962 that requires companies to recognize bonuses
paid to employees, directors and supervisors as an expense rather than an appropriation of earnin
beginning from January 1, 2008. According to the Interpretatieh697issued by ARDF in May 2008,
Chunghwa presumed that the employee bonuses to be paid will be settled in shares and takes those she
into consideration when calculating the weighted average number of outstanding shares used in th
calculation of diluted EPS the shares have a dilutive effect for the nine months ended September 30, 2012
and 2011. The number of shares is calculated by dividing the amount of bonuses by the closing price ¢
the Chunghwads shares as of t h & of tha sharescneedsstd leee t
considered until the stockholders resolve the number of shares to be distributed to employees in thel
meeting in the following year.

The diluted earnings per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2014 dvexémthe
effect of potential common stock of stock options by SENAO.
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26.

27.

PENSION PLAN

Chunghwa completed privatization plans on August 12, 2005. Chunghwa is required to pay all accruec
pension obligations including service clearance payment, lsamp payment under civil service plan,
additional separation payments, etc. upon the completion of the privatization in accordance with the Statut
Governing Privatization of Statemvned Enterprises. After paying all pension obligations for
privatization, the plan assets of Chunghwa should be transferred to the Fund for Privatization of
Governmeno wned Enterprises (the APrivatization Fund
Chunghwa transferred the remaining balance of fund to the PrivatiZatied. However, according to the
instructions of MOTC, Chunghwa is requested to pay all accrued pension obligations including service
clearance payment, lump sum payment under civil service plan, additional separation payments, etc. upc
the completion bthe privatization.

The pension plan under the Labor Pension Act of
pl an. Based on the LPA, Chunghwa and its sub
individual pension accounts at 68monthly salaries and wages.

The Companyds pension plan is considered as a ¢
provide benefits based on an e-monthsajag eribrsto rétiemegtt h
Chunghwa andts subsidiaries contribute an amount no more than 15% of salaries paid each month to their
respective pension funds (the Funds), which are administered by the Labor Pension Fund Supervisor
Committee (the Committee) and deposited in the names of the @emsrin the Bank of Taiwan.

Pension costs of the Company were $2,401,405 thousand ($2,176,771 thousand subject to defined bene
plan and $224,634 thousand subject to defined contributed plan) and $2,301,364 thousand ($2,107,7¢
thousand subject to deéd benefit plan and $193,599 thousand subject to defined contributed plan) for the
nine months ended September 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The ROC Government, one of C h u n gyhinmesedtsin Chunghwvao me r
Chunghwa provides fixeline services, wireless services, Internet and data and other services to the various
departments and institutions of the ROC Government and otherostagzl enterprises in the normal
course of business dn at -leagthnpéices. The information on service revenues from government
bodies and related organizations have not been provided because details of the type of transactions were |
summarized by Chunghwa. Chunghwa believes that all costs of dasigebs are reflected in the
financial statements.

a. The Company engages in business transactions with the following related parties:

Company Relationship

Taiwan International Standard Electronics Co., Ltd.  Equity-method investee
(ATI SEO0)

Kingwayt ek Technol ogy Co. , Equity-methodinvestee

Skysoft Co., Ltd. (ASKYZS Equity-method investee

Sonet EntertainmenineTai w Equity-method investee

Di an Zuan I ntergrating I Equity-methodinvestee

Viettel-CHT Co . , Ltd. (AVi et Equity-method investee

Huada Digital Cor por at i ¢ Equity-method investee

Senao Networ ks, I nc. ( A ¢ Equity-method investee of SENAO
HopeTech Technol ogi es L i Equityymehod investee of SIS

(Continued)
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Company Relationship

Chunghwa Tel ecom Foundat Anonprofit organization of which the fun
donated by Chunghwa exceeds one tt
of its total funds

Senao Technical and Cul t Anonprofit organization of which the fun
donated by SENAO exceeds one third
its total funds

I nternational I nt egr at e ¢ Equity-method investee, which was a
subsidiary of Chunghwa before
Chunghwa lost control over IISI on

June 24, 201
ST-2 Satellite Ventur es P Equitymethod investee of CHTS
Sochamp Technol ogy Co. , Investorofsignificant influence over CH¢
United Daily News Co. , L Investor of significant influence over SFLC
udn Digt a | Co. , Lt d. ( Audn D Investor of significant influence over SFLC
Xi amen Sertec Busi ness 1 Equitymethod investee of COI
Cheng Fong Investment Co., Ltd. The chairman of the board of directors, v
is served as the presitteof SENAO
(Concluded)
. Significant transactions with the above related parties are summarized as follows:
September 30
2012 2011
Amount % Amount %
1) Receivables
Trade notes and accounts receivable
Sonet $ 25,874 92 $ 13,206 68
Others 2,341 8 6,205 32
$ 28215 100 $ 19,411 100
2) Payables
Trade notes payable, accounts payable anc
accrued expenses
STS $ 236,261 50 $ 33,258 6
TISE 77,993 16 433,749 75
S| 67,552 14 64,110 11
SKYSOFT 19,329 4 8,210 2
KWT 13,470 3 928 -
Others 14,319 3 6,205 1
428,924 90 546,460 95
Amounts collected in trust for others
Sonet 31,925 7 23,414 4
SKYSOFT 16,554 3 8,333 1
Others - - 49 -
48,479 10 31,796 5
$ 477,403 100 $ 578,256 100
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3)

4)

5)

6)

7

8)

Advances from customers (include in other
current liabilities)

SNI

Customer 0s deposits

Others

Revenues

Sonet
SKYSOFT
HopeTech
Others

Operating costs and expenses

STS

TISE

1Sl
SKYSOFT
HopeTech
CTF

KWT
Others

Non-operating income and gains

SNI
Others

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipme

TISE
Others
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September 30

2012 2011
Amount % Amount %
$ 2,733 - $ 2733
$ 2,448 - $ 980

Nine Months Ended September 30

2012 2011
Amount % Amount %
$ 243,422 - $ 205,448

26,986 - 31,583
20,606 - 54,422
13,136 - 8,888
$ 304,150 - $ 300,341
$ 307,817 - $ 67,343
298,361 - 338,114
141,458 - 17,324
79,896 - 35,439
44,457 - 13,226
44,363 - 44,721
23,942 - 31,985
14,761 - 18,948
$ 955,055 - $ 567,100
$ 23,409 2 $ 23,422

699 518
$ 24,108 2 $ 23,940
$ 427,326 2 $ 657,817

15,428 88,092
$ 442,754 2 $ 745,909




28.

29.

Chunghwa has entered into a contract v8ih2 Satellite Ventures Pte., Ltd. on March 12, 2010 to
lease capacity on the T satellite. This lease term is 15 years which will start from the official
operation of ST2 satellite and the total contract value is approximately $6,000,000 thousand
(SG$260,723 thousand), which included a prepayment of $3,067,711 thousand, and the rest of amour
will be paid annually when SZ satellite starts its official operation. &Tsatellite was launched in

May 2011, and began its official operation in August 201The total rental expense for the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 was $307,817 thousand, which consisted of a reduction of tk
prepayment of $153,385 thousand and an additional accrual of $154,432 thousand. The prepaymel
was $2,829,112 thousandldssified as other assetsthers $204,514 thousand, and other current assets
$2,624,598 thousand) as of September 30, 2012.

SENAO rents out part of its plant to SNI, and the rent is collected monthly.

The transaction terms with the related partiesendetermined in accordance with mutual agreements
when there were no similar transactions with third parties. Other transactions with related parties were
not significantly different from those with third parties.

PLEDGED ASSETS

The following assts are pledged as collaterals for stierin and longerm bank loans and contract
deposits by Chunghwa and its subsidiaries.

September 30
2012 2011
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 2,708,619 $ 2,745,373
Restricted assets 19906 9,100

$ 2,728,525 $ 2,754,473

SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of September 30, 2012, in addition to thos
commitments under necancelable contracts with variouarpes were as follows:

a. Acquisitions of land and buildings of $33,266 thousand.

b. Acquisitions of telecommunications equipment 02880,315thousand.

c. Unused letters of credit of $345,182 thousand.

d. Contract to print billing, envelopes andlsgy gifts of $42,713 thousand.

e. For the purpose of completion the construction, acquisition of the building construction license and
registration ownerships of all buildings for LightEra Covent Garden Project, LED signed the trust deeds
with Hua Nan Bink and China Real Estate Management Co., Ltd., for the fund management, property
rights and related development to the extent of authority they are given.

Trust assets are as follow:

September 30,
2012

Land held for sale $ 92,645
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f. The Company also has noancellable operating leases covering certain buildings, computers,
computer peripheral equipment and operating system software under contracts that expire in variou
years. Future lease payments were as follows:

Year Rental Amount
2012 (from October 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012) $ 580,825
2013 1,935,515
2014 1,561,298
2015 1,250,251
2016 and thereafter 1,610,099

g. A commitment to contribute $2,000,000 thousandtBiping Fund administered by the Taipei City
Government, of which $1,000,000 thousand was contributed by Chunghwa on August 15, 1996
(classified as longerm investment other monetary assets). If the fund is not sufficient, Chunghwa
will contribute theremaining $1,000,000 thousand upon natification from the Taipei City Government.
Based on Chunghwadés wunderstanding of the Pipi
longer necessary by the ROC government, Chunghwa will receive back itstimogte share of the
net equity of the Piping Fund upon its dissolution. The Company does not know when its contribution
to the Piping Fund will be returned; therefore, the Company did not discount the face amount of its
contribution to the Piping Fund.

30. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Fair values of financial instruments were as follows:

September 30
2012 2011
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,823,455 $ 38,823,455 $ 48,803,511 $ 48,803,511
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 32,678 32,678 77,734 77,734
Available-for-sale financial assets

current 2,390,784 2,390,784 2,544,351 2,544,351
Held-to-maturity financial assets

current 2,981,338 2,981,338 1,621,912 1,621,912
Trade notes and accounts receivable

net 24,400,896 24,400,896 22,191,646 22,191,646
Receivables from related parties 28,215 28,215 19,411 19,411
Other current monetary assets 1,768,167 1,768,167 1,923,956 1,923,956
Restricted assetscurrent 11,040 11,040 47,979 47,979
Financial assets carried at cost 2,616,087 - 2,856,715 -
Available-for-sale financial assets

noncurrent 3,261,868 3,261,868 45,449 45,449
Held-to-maturity financial assets

noncurrent 14,005,461 14,005,461 12,681,837 12,681,837
Other noncurrent monetary assets 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Refundable deposits 1,901,688 1,901,688 1,661,226 1,661,226
Restricted assetsnoncurrent 8,866 8,866 8,152 8,152

Liabilities

Shortterm loans 130000 130,000 135,000 135,000
Financial liabilities at fair value throu¢

profit or loss 222 222 82,340 82,340
Trade notes and accounts payable 12,346,431 12,346,431 10,516,374 10,516,374
Payables to related pias 477,403 477,403 578,256 578,256

(Continued)
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September 30

2012 2011
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Accrued expenses $ 13,404,514 $ 13,404,514 $ 13,656,757 $ 13,656,795
Payables to equipment suppliers
(included in Aot
l'iabilitieso) 1,879,036 1,879,036 1,824,111 1,824,111
Amounts collected for others (include
in fAiother currer 1,367,982 1,367,982 1,265,870 1,265870
Payables to contractors (included in
fother current | 1,270,578 1,270,578 1,718,506 1,718,506
Refundabl e custort
(included in Aot
l'iabilitieso) 1,163,779 1,163,779 1,153,397 1,153,39
Current portion of longerm loans 33,489 33,489 304,007 304,007
Long-term loans 1,650,000 1,650,000 1,983,489 1,983,489
Customerso6 deposi 4,870,073 4,870,073 5,109,861 5,109,861
(Concluded)

b. Methads and assumptions used in the estimation of fair values of financial instruments:

1) The fair values of certain financial instruments recognized in the balance sheet generally correspont
to the market prices of the financial assets. Because of thenshtntities of these instruments,
the carrying value represents a reasonable basis to estimate fair values. This method does ni
apply to the financial instruments discussed in Notes 2, 3, and 4 below.

2) If the financial instruments have quoted markeétgs in an active market, the quoted market prices
are viewed as fair values. If the market price of the other financial instruments are not readily
available, valuation techniques are used incorporating estimates and assumptions that are consiste
with prevailing market conditions.

3) Financial assets carried at cost are investments in unlisted shares, which have no quoted prices in :
active market and entail an unreasonably high cost to obtain verifiable fair values. Therefore, no
fair value is presnted.

4) The fair value of longerm loans (including current portion) is discounted based on projected cash
flow which approximate their carrying amounts. The projected cash flows were discounted using
the interest rate of similar lorigrm loans.

c. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities using quoted market price or valuation techniques were a:
follows:

Amount Based on Quoted Amount Determined Using
Market Price Valuation Techniques
September 30 September 30
2012 2011 2012 2011
Assets
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss $ - $ 73,389 $ 32,678 $ 4,345
Available-for-sale financial assets 5,601,897 2,513,387 50,755 76,413
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss - - 222 82,340

-45-



d.

Information about financial risks

1)

2)

3)

4)

Market risk

The foreign exchange rate fIl uct uaetrenoydominated ul d
assets antlabilities, outstanding currency swap contracts, and forward exchange contracts exposed
to rate risk.

The fluctuations of market price would result in the index future contracts exposed to price risk.

The financial instruments categorized as availétiesale financial assets are mainly listed stocks,
openend mutual funds and corporate bonds. Therefore, the market risk is the fluctuations of
market price. In order to manage this risk, the Company would assess the risk before investing
therefore, o material market risk is anticipated.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that would be incurred by the Company if the
counterparties or thireparties breach contracts. Financial instruments with positive fair values at
the balane sheet date are evaluated for credit risk. The copardies or thireparties of the
aforementioned financial instruments are reputable financial institutions and corporations.
Management does not expect the Caemphbhenmat@ral e X |
The Company held a variety of financial instruments, the maximum credit exposed amount is the
same as their carrying amounts.

Liquidity risk

The Company has sufficient operating capital to meet cash needs upon settlementati/aleriv
financial instruments. Therefore, the liquidity risk is low.

The financial instruments of the Company categorized as avafabdale financial assets are
publicly-traded, easily converted to cash. Therefore, no material liquidity risk ispatéidi The
financial instruments categorized as financial assets carried at cost are investments that do not hay
a quoted market price in an active market. Therefore, material liquidity risk is anticipated.

Cash flow interest rate risk
The Companyengages in investments in fix@derestrate debt securities. Therefore, cash flows

from such securities are not expected to fluctuate significantly due to changes in market interesi
rates.

31. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

Following are the additional diszsures required by the SFC for Chunghwa and its investees:

a. Financings provided: None.

b.

Endorsement/guarantee provided: Please see Table 1.

Marketable securities held: Please see Table 2.

Marketable securities acquired and disposed obstscor prices at least $100 million or 20% of the
paidin capital: Please see Table 3.
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e. Acquisition of individual real estate at costs of at least $100 million or 20% of theénpeapital:
None.

f. Disposal of individual real estate at prices beast $100 million or 20% of the paiid capital: None.

g. Total purchase from or sale to related parties amounting to at least $100 million or 20% of4he paid
capital: Please see Table 4.

Please see

h. Receivables from related parties amounting to $100amilbr 20% of the paiéh capital:
Table 5.

i. Names, locations, and other information of investees on which the Company exercises significant
influence: Please see Table 6.

j.  Financial transactions: Please see Notes 5 and 30.

k. Investmat in Mainland China: Please see Table 7.

I. Intercompany relationships and significant intercompany transaction: Please see Table 8.

32.

33.

SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Segment information.

OTHERS

Please see Table 9.

The significant informatin of foreigrcurrency financial assets and liabilities as below:

September 30

2012 2011
Foreign New Taiwan Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Dollars Currencies Dollars
(Thousands) Exchange Rate (Thousands) (Thousands) Exchange Rate  (Thousands)
Financial assets
Monetary items
Cash
US Dollar $ 21,541 29.30 $ 631,139 % 15,050 30.48 $ 458,733
HK Dollar 106,648 3.78 403,131 683 391 2,670
RMB 53258 4.66 248,180 6,383 4.80 30,604
SG Dollar 5,022 23.92 120,137 4,828 23.51 113,511
JP Yen 99,088 0.38 37,623 3,236 0.40 1,288
Euro Dollar 117 37.89 4,443 869 41.23 35,822
Accounts eceivable
US Dollar 178,336 29.30 5,225,254 153,402 30.48 4,675,699
HK Dollar 57,405 3.78 216,992 544 391 2,126
RMB 3,412 4.66 15,898 5,142 4.80 24,656
JP Yen 39,432 0.38 14,981 3,513 0.40 1,398
Available-for-sale
financial assets
US Dollar 74,847 29.30 2,193,024 64,102 30.48 1,953,829
Investments accounte
for using equity
method
US Dollar 1,029 29.30 30,152 710 30.48 21,630
VND Dollar 193,273,529 0.00136 262,852 184,878,873 0.00142 262,528
SG Dollar 22,920 23.92 548,243 18,822 23.51 442,516
(Continued)
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34.

September 30

2012

2011

Foreign New Taiwan Foreign New Taiwan
Currencies Dollars Currencies Dollars
(Thousands) Exchange Rate (Thousands) (Thousands) Exchange Rate (Thousands)
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
Payable to suppliers
US Ddlar $ 138,758 29.30 $ 4,065601 $ 122,663 30.48 $ 3,738,773
SG Dollar 9,928 23.92 237,467 1,415 23.51 33,258
HK Dollar 23,457 3.78 88,669 1,012 3.91 3,957
JP Yen 39,432 0.38 14,984 11,462 0.40 4,562
Euro Dollar 35,639 37.89 1,350,376 27,007 41.23 1,113,498
(Concluded)

PRE-DISCLOSURE FOR ADOPTION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Under Rule No. 0990004943 issued by the Financial Supervisory Comm{ESC) on February 2, 2010,

the Company préiscloses the following information on the adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards as foll ows. The related affected am
long-term equity ivestments have not been reviewed, except for SENAO International Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries.

a. On May 14, 20009, the FSC announced the AFrai
Reporting Standards by Compan statimg 2018, contpaniesR@C . o
shares listed on the TSE or traded on the Taiwan GreTai Securities Market or Emerging Stock Marke
should prepare their financial statements in accordance with the Guidelines Governing the Preparatio
of Financial Reports bySecurities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards, and the Interpretations as well as related guidance translated by tt
ARDF and issued by the FSC (IFRSs). To comply with this framework, the Cgrhganset up a
project team and made a plan to adopt the IFRSs. Leading the implementation of this plan is the
President. The main contents of the plan, anticipated schedule and status of execution as of Septemt
30, 2012 were as follows:

Status of
Contents of Ran Responsible Department Execution
1) Evaluation phase: August 1, 200®arch 31, 2010
a) Make IFRSs adoption plan and set up a IFRSs  Accounting department  Completed
project team
b) Compare and analyze the differences between Accounting department  Completed
current accounting policiend IFRSs
c) Complete the identification of consolidated entitic Accounting department  Completed
under IFRSs
d) Evaluate the modification of current accounting Accounting department  Completed
policies for IFRSs adoption
e) Eval uate the ado-pntei on Accountingdepartment Completed
Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Stand r d s 0
f) Conduct the first stage of internal employee trair Accounting department  Completed
(Continued)
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Status of
Contents of Plan Responsible Department Execution

2) Preparation phase: April 1, 2010ecember 31, 201

a) Determine accounting policies in accordance wit Accounting department  Completed
IFRSs

b) Choose the optional exemptiomsder IFRS 1, Accounting department  Completed
i F i-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standardso

¢) Modify related information system Information technology = Completed
department, accounting
department

d) Amend internal control and related policies Accounting department, Completed

related departments
e) Conduct the second stage of internal employee Accounting department  Completed
training

3) Application phase: January 1, 201Recemler 31,
2013

a) Prepare opening IFRSs balance sheet Accounting department  Completed
b) Prepare IFRS comparative financial statements - Accounting department  In progress
the year ended December 31, 2012
c) Prepare financial statements in accordance with Accounting department  In progress
IFRSs
(Concluded)

.Based on | ER&®elad&bprison of I nternational Fin
Company first adopts IFRSs, the Company should apply the IFRSs to establish its acqmlicizgy
prepare its financial statements and make required adjustments retroactively to the transition dats
(January 1, 2012). IFRS 1 provided several optional exemptions. The main exemptions adopted b
the Company were discussed as follows:

1) Business combination

The Company elected not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to business combinations occurred on o
before December 31, 2011.

2) Sharebased payment transactions

The Company elected not to apply IFRS 2 retrospectively to the-Bhaeel payent transactions
which were granted and vested on or before December 31, 2011.

3) Deemed costs

The Company elected to measure its revalued land at the date of transition to IFRSs at its revalue
amount determined under ROC GAAP as its deemed cost.

4) Employee benefits

The Company elected to recognize all unrecognized cumulative actuarial gains and losses a
retained earnings as of January 1, 2012.
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The impacts of the aforementioned optional exemptions were included in the following part e. of

Afex ptaomn

for

t he

adjustment s

of

Il FRSs

transi ti

The Company had assessed the material differences and the impacts between the existing accounti
policies and the accounting policies to be adopted under IFRSs as follows:

1) Reconciliation of consolidad balance sheet as of January 1, 2012

2)

ROC GAAP

Adjustments

Differences in
Recognitions and

Differences in

IFRSs

Items Amount Measurements Presentations Amount
Current assets $ 106,538,985 $ (337,759 $ (115,469 $ 106,085,767
Long-term investments 19,876,491 (8,000 (1,000,009 18,868,491
Property, plant and equipme 302,612,014 - (7,602,063 295,009,951
- 9,060,081 9,060,081

Intangible assets 6,330,253 - 12,475 6,342,728
Other assets 7,562,53 581,839 (334,947 7,809,431
Total $ 442,920,282 $ 236,085 $ 20,082 $ 443,176,449
Current liabilities $ 59,280,808 $ 567,407 $ - $ 59,848,215
Noncurrent liabilities 3,635,835 1,322,478 - 4,958,313
Reserve for land value 94,986 - (94,986 -

incremental tax
Other liabilities 6,866,005 1,549,205 115,068 8,530,278
Total liabilities 69,877,634 3,439,090 20,082 73,336,806
Common stock 77,574,465 - - 77,574465
Additional paidin capital 169,536,289 20,621,248 - 190,157,537
Retained earnings 115,866,869 (18,051,608 - 97,815,261
Other adjustments 5,753,403 (5,724,647 - 28,756
Total equity attributable to 368,731,026 (3,155,007 - 365,576,019

stockholders of the parent
Minority interests in 4,311,622 (47,998 - 4,263,624

subsidiaries
Total stockholders' equity 373,042,648 (3,203,009 - 369,839,643
Total $ 442,920,282 $ 236,085 $ 20,082 $ 443,176,449

Reconciliation of consolidated balance sheet as of September 30,

Adjustments

Differences in

Items

Current assets

Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipme
Investment property
Intangible assets

Other noncurrent assets

Total
Current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Common stock

Additional paidin capital
Retained earnings

Other adjustments

Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent

Noncontrolling interest

Total shareholders ' equity

Total

2012

IFRSs

ROC GAAP Recognitions and Differences in
Items Amount Measurements Presentations Amount
Current assets $ 84,281,938 $ (103,899 $ (106,808 $ 84,071,231
Long-term investmerst 23,571,352 (7,660) (1,000,000 22,563,692
Property, plant and equipme 299,809,041 - (6,366,823 293,442,220
- 7,810,197 7,810,197

Intangible assets 5,872,131 - 51,952 5,924,083
Other assets 7,605,886 482,495 (349,059 7,739,322
Total $ 421,140,348 $ 370,936 $ 39,461 421 745
Current liabilities $ 48,225,661 $ 402,904 $ - $ 48,628,565
Noncurrent liabilities 4,235,200 966,162 - 5,201,362
Reserve for land value 94,986 - (94,986 -

incremental tax
Other liabilities 6,833,408 1,545,818 134,447 8,513,673
Total liabilities 59,389,255 2,914,884 39,461 62,343,600
Common stock 77,574,465 - - 77,574,465
Additional paidin capital 169,542,532 20,618,636 - 190,146,168
Retained earnings 104,462,712 (17,391,41% - 87,071,295
Other adjustments 5,964,503 (5,724,799 - 239,707
Total equity attributable to 357,544,212 (2,497,577 - 355,046,635

stockholders of the parent
Minority interests in 4,206,881 (46,371) - 4,160,510

subsidiaries
Total stockholders' equity 361,751,093 (2,543,949 - 359,207,145
Total $ 421,140,348 $ 370,936 $ 39,461 421 745

-50-

Iltems

Current assets

Long-term investments
Property, plant and equipme
Investment property
Intangible assets

Other noncurrent assets

Total

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Common stock

Additional paidin capital
Retained earnings

Other ajustments

Total equity attributable to
shareholders of the parent

Noncontrolling interest

Total shareholders' equity

Total

Notes

4),7),9),13)

10),13)

1), 2), 13)

1), 2)

13)

1), 2), 4), 5), 6),
7),13)

7).8),9)
7).8)
4)

4), 6)

6), 12)
3),5),6),7),8),
9),10), 11),

12)
3), 6), 10)

5), 6), 10), 11)

Notes

4),7),9),13)
10), 12), 13)
1), 2), 13)
1), 2)

13)
1),2),4),9,6),
7). 13)

7).8),9)
7),8)
4)

4),5), 6)

6), 11), 12)
3), 5),6), 7), 8),
9), 10), 11),

12)
3), 6), 10)

5), 6), 10), 11)



3) Reconciliation of consolidated statement of comprehensive income for nine months ended
September 30, 2012

Adjustments
Differences in

ROC GAAP Recognitions and Differences in IFRSs

Items Amount Measurements Presentations Amount Items Notes
Net revenues $ 164,008,760 $ 1,160,218 $ - $ 165,168,978 Net revenues 7), 8),9)
Operating costs (104,375,603 (442,559 (837) (104,818,999 Operatingcosts 6), 7), 9), 14)
Gross profits 59,633,157 717,659 (837) 60,349,979 Gross profits
Operating expenses (21,759,339 41,575 28,757 (21,689,007 Operating expenses 6), 7), 9), 11),

14)
Income fran operations 37,873,818 759,234 27,920 38,660,972 Income from operations
Non-operating income and 9,421 1,870 151 11,442 Non-operating income and 3), 10), 12)
losses losses

Income before income tax 37,883,239 761,104 28,071 38,672,414 Income before income tax
Income tax expense (6.066.68) (97.97)) (28,071) (6,192,723 Income tax expenses 5), 14)
Consolidated net income $ 31,816,558 $ 663,133 $ - 32,479,691 Consolidated net income

(41,273 Exchange differences arising
from the translation of the
foreign operations

246,505 Unrealized valuation gain on
availablefor-sale financial
assets

Other comprehensive incom

205,234 - current period (after tax)

$ 32,684,925 Total comprehensive income
d. Appropriation for special reserve at the date of transition to IFRSs

In accordance with the Order No. 1010012865 issuethidyEC on April 6, 2012, upon the fitghe
adoption of IFRSs, an entity shall appropriate to the special reserve in the amount of the increase il
retained earnings that resulted from applying the IFRS 1 exemptions to reclassify unrealized revaluatior
increment and cumulative translation differences (gain) to retained earnings. However, if the increase
in retained earnings that resulted from all IFRSs adjustments is smaller than the amount of unrealize
revaluation increment and cumulative translatiofedénces (gain) reclassified to retained earnings, the
special reserve is appropriated to the extent of the increased in retained earnings resulting from a
IFRSs adjustments. The special reserve will be reversed in proportion to the usage, disposal o
reclassification of the related assefBhe adjustments from IFRSs adoption resulted in the decrease of
retained earnings of the Company; therefore, the Company is not required to appropriate any amount t
the special reserve.

e. Explanation for the adjisents of IFRSs transition:
1) Classification of investment property

On January 1, 2012, the assets that met definitions of investment property under IAS 40
Al nvest ment Propertyo were reclassified froc
thousan, and other assetsidle assets of $463,417 thousand, to investment property. The total
amount of reclassification was $9,060,081 thousand. On September 30, 2012, the assets that m
definition of investment property were reclassified from propergntphnd equipment, $7,351,095
thousand, and other asset@dle assets, $459,102 thousand, to investment property. The total
amount of reclassification was $7,810,197 thousand.

2) Classification of leased assets and idle assets

Under ROC GAAP, leasednd idle assets were classified as other assets; after the transition to
IFRSs, leased and idle assets were reclassified to property, plant and equipment or investmer
property based on the nature of these assets.

The Company reclassified leased assetprtperty, plant and equipment and the amounts were
$400,453 thousand and $392,253 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 30, 201
respectively. Except for the abovementioned Item 1) which discussed the reclassification from
idle assets to investmeproperty, the Company reclassified the remaining idle assets to property,
plant and equipment amounting to $436,619 thousand and $422,168 thousand, as of January 1, 20:
and September 30, 2012, respectively.
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3) Deemed costs of property, plant and emeépt

The Company elected to apply the optional exemption in IFRS 1. The management measured lan
(classified as property, plant and equipment and investment property under IFRSSs) at its revaluec
amount which was determined under ROC GAAP as deemed c@tsJanuary 1, 2012, the
Company reclassified the wunrealized revaluat
retained earnings and the amount was $5,762,753 thousand. This reclassification did not affec
total equity. Due to disposal of me revalued assets and recognition of impairment loss of the
revalued assets, unrealized revaluation increment reclassified to retained earnings was decreased
$117 thousand and $2,054 thousand, respectively and unrealized revaluation increment as o
Sepgember 30, 2012 was $5,760,582 thousand. As a result of the above adjustments, gain ot
disposal of property, plant and equipment was reduced by $117 thousand and impairment loss wa
increased by $2,054 thousand.

4) Classification of deferred income taxset and liability, and valuation allowance

Under ROC GAAP, a deferred income tax asset and liability should be classified as current and
noncurrent in accordance with the classification of its related asset or liability. When a deferred
income tax asseand liability does not relate to an asset or liability, then it is classified as either
current or noncurrent based on the expected length of time before it is realized or settled.
However, under IFRSs, a deferred income tax asset and liability shoualddsified as noncurrent,

and could not be offset.

Under ROC GAAP, if it is more likely than not that deferred income tax assets will not be realized,
the valuation allowances are provided to the extent. However, under IFRSs, deferred income ta
assetsare only recognized when it is more likely than not to be realized, and the valuation
allowance is not used under IFRSs.

Based on the Guidelines Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, th
reserve for land value incrementalx caused by revaluation of land is classified as-teng
liabilities. Under IFRSs, if the Company elects to apply the IFRS 1 exemption and measure the
revalued land using the carrying amount determined under ROC GAAP as its deemed cost, the
related reerve for land value incremental tax should be classified as deferred income tax liabilities.

The Company reclassified its deferred income tax assetsrent to noncurrent assets and the
amounts were $115,464 thousand and $106,808 thousand as of JgrRGkg and September 30,
2012, respectively. Further, deferred income tax liabilities, which were netted with deferred
income tax assets under ROC GAAP, were reversed. As a result of such reversal, deferred incom
tax liabilities - noncurrent and defexd income tax assetmoncurrent were increased by $20,082
thousand and $39,461 thousand, respectively, and reserve for land value incremental tax of $94,98
thousand was also reclassified as deferred income tax liabilit@scurrent under IFRSs.

5) Income tax

Based on | AS 12 #dlncome Taxeso, the i ncome t
are as follows: Deferred income tax assets were increased by $596,271 thousand and $498,2¢
thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 3@, 284pectively; retained earnings were
increased by $587,418 thousand and $489,685 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September :
2012, respectively; noncontrolling interest were increased by $8,853 thousand and $8,615 thousan
as of January 1, 2012 aseéptember 30, 2012, respectively. Deferred income tax liabilities were
decreased by $34 thousand as of September 30, 2012. For the nine months ended September
2012, due to the adjustment of deferred income tax assets and deferred income taasliabilit
(decreased by $98,005 thousand in deferred tax assets and decreased by $34 thousand in defer
income tax liabilities), income tax expense was increased by $97,971 thousand.
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6) Employee benefits

Under ROC GAAP, net transaction obligation that wesulted from the first time adoption of

SFAS No. 18 APensi onodo s hne badis dver theaaverage rernzamidg o |
service life of active plan participants and recognized as net periodic pension cost. After the
transition to IFRSs, trani t i on all rules in I AS 19 AEmpl oyee
amounts of net transaction obligation should be recognized at once and adjusted in retain earnings.

Further, under ROC GAAP, actuarial gains (losses) are recognized based ormitloe approach

and the amounts are amortized over the average remaining service life of active plan participants
However, under IFRSs, the Company elected to recognize pension gains (losses) resulting fron
defined benefit plans as other comprehensigerime immediately and subsequent reclassification

to earnings is not permitted.

As a result of the aforementioned adjustments, other liabilities were increased by $1,549,205
thousand and $1,545,852 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 30, [28dtR/ehes

other noncurrent assets were decreased by $14,524 thousand and $15,874 thousand as of Januar
2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively; retained earnings were decreased by $1,512,03
thousand and $1,511,431 thousand as of January 1, 2013eateimber 30, 2012, respectively;
unrecognized net losses of pension were both decreased by $215 thousand as of January 1, 2012 &
September 30, 2012; noncontrolling interests were decreased by $51,910 thousand and $50,51
thousand as of January 1, 20drid September 30, 2012, respectively. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, pension cost was decreased by $2,003 thousand which increased $1:
thousand in operating costs and decreased $2,130 thousand in operating expenses.

Further, prior to Chughwa's privatization in 2005, the pension contributions were made according
to the related regulations. After privatization, the pension obligations of retained employees that
were civil employees and entitled to receive future monthly pension paymentsstda on t he
Pension Act 0, iAct of -ORnedaEnrtrerponsesodo Goanc
of Statute of Privatization of Governmedtwn ed Ent er pri seso0 were b
The settlement impact upon privatization of $20,648,8housand calculated according to the
actuarial report under 1AS 19 shall be retroactively adjusted from retained earnings to additional
paidin capital- privatization at the date of transition to IFRSs.

NAward credits (often known as fApointso)

Unde r ROC GAAP, theredbs no related guidance al
Chunghwa applied IFRI'C 13 ACustomer Royalty
be measured at its fair value to defer the recognition of revenuben Wie customers redeem the
points, the rel ated revenues and costs shall
current accounting policy that Chunghwa would accrue expenses when the award credits were
given.

Accrued award credits liabilgs (classified as other current liabilities) were decreased by $70,036
thousand and $130,340 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012, respectivel
receivables were increased by $12,128 thousand ($12,036 thousand was classified as atsrent ass
and $92 thousand was classified as noncurrent assets) and $12,516 thousand ($12,413 thousand v
classified as current assets and $103 thousand was classified as noncurrent assets) as of Januan
2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively; deferreddagvedits revenue (classified as ldegn
liabilities - deferred revenue) were increased by $36,370 thousand and $79,987 thousand as o
January 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively; retained earnings were increased by $45,7'
thousand and $62,8@housand as of January 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively. The
revenue was decreased by $43,229 thousand, the marketing expenses were decreased by $81,
thousand and the operating cost was increased by $21,111 thousand for the nineenuedhs
September 30, 2012.
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8) Recognition of revenue from providing fixed line connection service

Prior to privatization, according to the laws and regulations applicable teostatsl enterprises in
Taiwan, Chunghwa recorded revenue from providingdfikee connection service at the time the
service was performed. Under IFRSs, following the revenue recognition guidance, the above
service revenue should be treated as deferred income and recognized over the time when the servi
is continuously provided

Chunghwa should retrospectively adjust the deferred income of $1,925,816 thousand and
$1,419,419 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively, by decreasir
retained earnings and increasing the deferred revenue from provixiagliie connection service
($639,708 thousand and $533,244 thousand were classified as current liakiitiesred income;
$1,286,108 thousand and $886,175 thousand were classified atedondjabilities - deferred
income as of January 1, 2012 angteeber 30, 2012, respectively). For the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, revenue from providing fixed line connection service was increased by
$506,397 thousand.

9) Recognition of construction contract revenue

The construction contracts did notene t the criteria in | FRI C 1
Contractso does not apply. The Company coul
completed and sold out based on | AS 18 fARev

Company shdd reverse the revenue that was recognized based on percentage completion method
and recognize the related revenue, cost and expense when the project is completed in 2012.

Inventories were decreased by $392,040 thousand and $116,312 thousand asyof.,Jafdarand
September 30, 2012, respectively; deferred marketing expenses (classified as other current asse
were increased by $42,250 thousand as of January 1, 2012; accrued expenses (classified as ott
current liabilities- accrued expense) were degsed by $2,265 thousand of January 1, 2012;
retained earnings were decreased by $347,525 thousand and $116,312 thousand as of January
2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively. The construction revenue was increased by $697,0¢
thousand, the constriien cost was increased by $421,321 thousand and the marketing expenses
were increased by $44,516 thousand for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

10) Equity method investments

Associates and joint ventures that accounted for using equity metbatll sliso adopt IFRSs in
coordinated with the Companyo6és transition t
benefit and sharbased payments, etc. Due to the adjustments,-teyng investments were
decreased by $8,000 thousand and $7,391 thowsaafiJanuary 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012,
respectively; retained earnings were decreased by $40,367 thousand and $37,877 thousand as
January 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively; unrecognized net loss of pension wer
decreased by $37,891 tleand and $35,571 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 30,
2012, respectively; noncontrolling interest was decreased by $5,524 thousand and $5,085 thousar
as of January 1, 2012 and September 30, 2012, respectively. Investment income fronesissociat
and joint ventures was increased by $2,929 thousand for the nine months ended September 3
2012.

11) Sharebased payment transactions

The employee stock options granted by subsidiary were not vested on the transition date.
Therefore, the subsidiasyh oul d ap p | yb alsFeRdS Pa yfinsehnatroe r et r oa c |
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Under IFRSs, paith capital- employee stock option recognized by subsidiary does not belong to
the equity attributable to parent company, so it should be treated as noncontrolling interegt. As o
January 1, 2012, retained earnings were decreased by $583 thousand and noncontrolling intere
was increased by $583 thousand. As of September 30, 2012, retained earnings were increased |
$622 thousand, noncontrolling interest was increased by $608ahd and paith capital- equity

in additional paiein capital reported by equiyethod investees was decreased by $1,231 thousand.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2012, the compensation cost under general an
administrative expense was deceghby $2,546 thousand.

12) Subscription of associates/subsidiaries new shares and adjustmentiaf qagidal reported related
to equitymethod investees

When an investee issues new shares and original shareholders do not acquire new share
proportiona e | vy, this would result in changes in t
i nvestee. Accordi-hgr mol S¥FASt Nent $ wrderg Eq
GAAP, since there are changes in the net assets value of the equity metlstekiatibutable to

the investor, the investor shall reflect such changes by adjusting additionah magital and
long-term investments. However, under IFRSs, if the changes do not cause the investor to lose
significant influence over associates, #tfeange shall be treated as a deemed disposal with the
related gain or loss recognized in earnings. If the changes do not cause the investor to lose contre
over subsidiaries, the change shall be treated as equity transactions. In addition, the Compan
complied with the IFRSs FAQs published by the Taiwan Stock Exchange, and reclassified the
paidin capital which did not meet the definitions under IFRSs or the Company Act and Regulations
of Ministry of Economic Affairs to retained earnings. The Compamyassified such paith

capital of $26,830 thousand as of January 1, 2012 to retained earnings. As of September 30, 201.
paidin capital was decreased by $1,381 thousand, retained earnings was increased by $1,11
thousand, and lonterm investment was deeased by $269 thousand. Gain on disposal of
financial instruments was increased by $1,112 thousand for the nine months ended September 3(
2012.

13) Presentation of consolidated balance sheets
a) Piping fund

As part of t he g o aderthe mésting felecomemurfications inftasiructurp g r
project, Chunghwa and other public utility companies were required by the ROC government to
contribute a total of $1,000,000 thousand to a Piping Fund administered by the Taipei City
Government. Since theet assets of this fund would be returned proportionately after the
project was completed, in order to conform to the presentation of the financial statements undel
IFRSSs, the fund was reclassified as other noncurrent assets.

b) Time deposits with matuies of more than three months

Under ROC GAAP, cash and cash equivalents includes time deposits that are cancellable bu
without any loss of principal. Under IFRSs, cash equivalents are-tehart highly liquid
investments that are readily convertibbeknown amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Therefore, an investment normally qualifies as a cash
equivalent only when it has a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Time depaits with maturities of more than three months held by the Company were
$40,709,500 thousand and $29,764,668 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 3
2012, respectively. In order to conform to the presentation of the financial statements under
IFRSSs, such amounts were reclassified from cash to other monetary-assetat.
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c) Deferred expense

Under IFRSs, the deferred expense, which was classified as other assets under ROC GAAP, we
reclassified based on its nature. Deferred expenses bdldogelecoration construction
projects and advertisement signboard, etc. were reclassified as property, plant and equipment c
$157,529 thousand and $169,853 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 30, 201
respectively. Deferred expenses belongetbtaputer software were reclassified as intangible
assets of $12,475 thousand and $51,952 thousand as of January 1, 2012 and September 2
2012, respectively.

14)Presentation of consolidated statements of comprehensive income

After the transition to IFRs, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income includes net
income and other comprehensive income. Further, certain accounts were reclassified to conforn
to the presentation of the financial statements under IFRSs.

The Company has prepared #i®ve assessments in compliance with (a) the 2010 version of the IFRSs
translated by the ARDF and issued by the FSC and (b) the Guidelines Governing the Preparation o
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers amended and issued by the FSC on Decertiidr. 2 I®=se
assessments may be changed as the FSC may issue new rules governing the adoption of IFRSs, anc
other laws and regulations may be amended to comply with the adoption of IFRSs. Therefore, the
above assessments may be affected, and differ finermew accounting policies that are drafted by
IFRSs.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

ENDORSEMENTS/GUARANTEES PROVIDED
NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)

TABLE 1

Guaranteed Party Limits on Amount of Ratio of Accumulated .
Maximum
Endorsement/Guarantee Nature of Endorsement/ Maximum Balance for : Endorsement/ Endorsement/ Endorsement/
No. Provider Name Relationshi Guarantee Amount the Year Ending Balance Guarantee Guarantee to Net Guarantee Amount
(Note 2) P Provided to Each Collateralized by Equity Per Latest Allowable
Guaranteed Party Properties Financial Statements
0 Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. |Donghwa Telecom b $ 3,575442 $ 1,031,923 $ 511,631 $ - 0.14% $ 14,301,768
Co., Ltd. (Note 3) (Note 4) (Note 6)
25 Yao Yong Real Property Co., Lt(Light Era d 3,859,207 2,150,000 1,650,000 1,650,000 0.5% 3,893,207
Development Co. (Note 7) (Note 5) (Note 5) (Note 7)
Ltd.
Note 1: Significant transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries or among subsidiaries are numbered as follows:
a. n0oo for the Company.
b. Subsi di aries are numbered from fAlo0.
Note 2: Relationships between the ens@ment/guarantee provider and the guaranteed party:

a. Trading partner.

b. Majority owned subsidiary.

c. The Company and subsidiary owns over 50% ownership of the investee company.

d A subsidiary jointly owned by -otedsubSidianypany and the Companydés directly

e. Guaranteed by the Company according to the construction contract.

f. An investee company. The guarantees were provided based on the Companyé6és proportionate share in
Note 3: The maximum amount of endorsementorrg@gant ee i s up to 1% of the total stockholdersé equity of the | atest financi al st at
Note 4: The actual amount used by guaranteed party is $511,631 thousand.

Note 5: The actual amount used by guaranteed party is $1,650,000 thousand.
Note6: The maxi mum amount of endorsement or guarantee is uipoftheCompanyof t he t ot al stockhol dersé equity of the
Note 7: The maximum amount of endorsement or guarantee is up to 200% of the asset value of thatatedtsiatements of Yao Yong Real Property Co., Ltd.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE SECURITIES HELD
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

TABLE 2

September 30, 2012

No. | Held Company Name Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value |Percentage ol Market Value or Note
Company (Thousands/ .
: (Note 5) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Thousand Units)
0 |[Chunghwa Telecom Co., [Stocks

Ltd. Senao International Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 71,773 $ 1,532,833 28 $ 7,823,274 Note 4
(Note 10)

Light Era Development Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments acamted for using equity meth 300,000 3,644,691 100 3,645,746 Note 1
(Note 10)

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 305,090 1,176,825 100 1,176,825 Note 1
(Note 10)

Chunghwarelecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 26,383 754,935 100 754,935 Note 1
(Note 10)

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 60,000 701,011 100 673,944 Note 1
(Note 10)

Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 80,100 674,506 89 732,777 Note 1
(Note 10)

Taiwan International Standard Electronics Co.|Equity-method investee|lnvestments accounted for using equity met 1,760 594,866 40 889,077 Note 1

Ltd.

CHIEF Telecom Inc. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 37,942 565,593 69 508,483 Note 1
(Note 10)

International Integrated System, Inc. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met 22,498 268,414 33 248,539 Note 1

Viettel-CHT Co., Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met - 262,852 30 262,852 Note 1

Huada Digital Corporation Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met 25,000 245,214 50 245,214 Note 1

Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., LtqSubsidiary Investments accounted for usinguéy methog 15,000 189,275 100 189,275 Note 1
(Note 10)

Prime Asia Investments Group Ltd. (B.V.l.)  |Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 6,960 156,058 100 156,197 Note 1
(Note 10)

Skysoft Co., Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met 4,438 122,988 30 86,793 Note 1

Dian Zuan Integrating Marketing Co., Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met 12,900 120,499 33 120,499 Note 1

Spring House Entertainment Tech. Inc. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 7,015 117,212 56 104,318 Note 1
(Note 10)

Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity mdf 6,000 98,827 100 112,418 Note 1
(Note 10)

Kingwaytek Technology Co., Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity metl 1,703 72,253 33 36,843 Note 1

Smartfun Digital Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investmers accounted for using equity meth 6,500 47,819 65 47,946 Note 1
(Note 10)

Sonet Entertainment Taiwan Co., Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity metl 3,429 32,198 30 14,731 Note 1

Chunghwa €lecom Vietnam Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - 30,093 100 30,093 Note 1
(Note 10)
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Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for usieguity methog 1 $ 27,836 100 $ 27,836 Note 1
(Note 10)
Chunghwa Sochamp Technology Inc. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 2,040 14,800 51 14,960 Note 1
(Note 10)
New Prospect Investments Holdings L{B.V.l.) |Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - - 100 - Note 2
(US$1 dollan (US$1 dollan
(Note 10
Taipei Financial Center Corp. - Financial assets carried at cegbncurrent 172,927 1,789,530 12 1,641,346 Note 1
Industrial Bank of Taiwan Il Venture Capital Cq - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 18,000 180,000 17 171,200 Note 1
Ltd. (IBT 11)
Global Mobile Corp. - Financial assets carried at cegbncurrent 7,617 77,018 3 54,569 Note 1
Innovation Works Development Fund, L.P. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent - 108,476 4 103,043 Note 1
iD Branding Ventures - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 6,750 67,500 8 61,628 Note 1
Innovation Works Limited - Financial assets carried at cegbncurrent 1,000 31,391 2 36,403 Note 1
CQi Energy Infocom Inc. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 2,000 - 18 - Note 1
RPTI Intergroup International Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 4,765 - 10 - Note 1
Essence Technology Solution, Inc. - Financial assets carried at cesbncurrent 200 - 7 552 Note 1
Beneficiary cerficates (mutual fund)
PIMCO Global Investment Grade Credinhs H - Available-for-sale financial assets 1,071 456,118 - 500,112 Note 3
Acc
PIMCO GIS Total Return Bond Fundd - Available-for-sale financl assets 770 534,453 - 581,330 Note 3
Institutional Class (Acc)
Janus Flexible Income Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 671 230,472 - 247,452 Note 3
PIMCO GIS Diversified Bond FundH - Available-for-sale finamial assets 984 347,452 - 399,118 Note 3
Institutional Class (Acc)
Fidelity Funds- US Dollar Bond Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 778 297,283 - 301,964 Note 3
Y-ACC-USD
Eastpring InvestmentsUS Corporation Bond - Availablefor-sale fnancial assets 433 149,190 - 147,980 Note 3
Fund
Stocks
China Airlines Ltd. - Available-for-sale financial assetsioncurrent 263,622 3,092,287 5 3,229,371 Note 4
Bond
Taiwan Power Co. 2hUnsecured BonéB Issue - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 306,364 - 306,364 Note 6
in 2005
Taiwan Power Co. 2nd Unsecured Bedbd Issug - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 203,876 - 203,876 Note 6
in 2005
Chinese Petteum Corporation 1st Unsecured - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 402,819 - 402,819 Note 6
Corporate BondB Issue in 2006
Chinese Petroleum Corporation 1st Unsecure( - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 302,114 - 302,114 Note 6
Corporate BondB Issue in 2006
Chinese Petroleum Corporation 1st Unsecureq - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 207,472 - 207,472 Note 6
Corporate BoneC Issue in 2006
Chinese Petroleum Corporation 1st Unsecure( - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 103,663 - 103,663 Note 6
Corporate BoneC Issuen 2006
(Continued)
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Taiwan Power Co. 2nd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - $ 208,700 $ - $ 208,700 Note 6
Bond-C Issue in 2006

Taiwan Power Co. 3rd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 209,667 - 209,667 Note 6
Bond-C Issue in 2006

Chinese Petroleum Corporation 1st Unsecureq - Held-to-maturity finarcial assets - 101,203 - 101,203 Note 6
Corporate Bondh Issue in 2008

China Steel Corporation 1st Unsecured Corpo - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,747 - 100,747 Note 6
Bonds Issue in 2008

China Steel Corporation 2nd Unsecured Corpq - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,003 - 100,003 Note 6
BondsA Issue in 2008

China Steel Corporation 2nd Unsecured Corpq - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,750 - 100,750 Note 6
BondsA Issue in 2008

China Steel Comration 2nd Unsecured Corpor - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 308,479 - 308,479 Note 6
BondsB Issue in 2008

China Steel Corporation 2nd Unsecured Corp( - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 204,807 - 204,807 Note 6
BondsB Issue in 2008

Taiwan Power Co. 2nd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 151,555 - 151,555 Note 6
BondsB Issue in 2008

Taiwan Power Co. 3rd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financialassets - 25,261 - 25,261 Note 6
BondB Issue in 2008

Taiwan Power Co. 4th Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 202,719 - 202,719 Note 6
BondB Issue in 2008

Taiwan Power Co. 7th Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 152,042 - 152,042 Note 6
BondA Issue in 2008

NAN YA Company 2nd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 401,405 - 401,405 Note 6
Bonds Issue in 2008

NAN YA Company 3rd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 200,964 - 200,964 Note 6
Bonds Isse in 2008

China Development Financial Holding - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,769 - 100,769 Note 6
Corporation 1st Unsecured Corporate BeAd
Issue in 2008

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 49,982 - 49,982 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 2nd - Held-to-maturityfinancial assets - 50,455 - 50,455 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 2nd - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 202,360 - 202,360 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 3rd - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 49,989 - 49,989 Note 6
Unseaired Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 3rd - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 201,492 - 201,492 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2008

Chinese Petroleum Corporation 1st Unsecure( - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 200,468 - 200,468 Note 6
Corporate Bond#\ Issue in 2009

FCFC 1st Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue i - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 250,965 - 250,965 Note 6
2009

Taiwan Power Co. 1st Secured Corporate BAn - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 40,259 - 40,259 Note 6
Issue in 2009
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Taiwan Power Co. 1st Secured Corporatada - Held-to-maturity financial assets - $ 200,567 - $ 200,567 Note 6
Issue in 2009

Taiwan Power Co. 2nd Secured Corporate BB - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,209 - 100,209 Note 6
Issue in 2009

Taiwan Power Compamth Secured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 349,377 - 349,377 Note 6
BondB Issue in 2009

Taiwan Power Company 5th Secured Corporal - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,376 - 100,376 Note 6
BondB Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 99,969 - 99,969 Note 6
Bond Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 301,954 - 301,954 Note 6
Bond Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 201,393 - 201,393 Note 6
Bond Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 3rd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 50,191 - 50,191 Note 6
Bond Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 3rd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 200,338 - 200,338 Note 6
Bond Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 4th Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financal assets - 301,719 - 301,719 Note 6
Bond Issue in 2009

NAN YA Company 4th Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 199,817 - 199,817 Note 6
Bond Issue in 2009

MLPC 1st Unsecured Corporate Bond Issue in - Held-to-maturityfinancial assets - 99,955 - 99,955 Note 6
2009

MLPC 1st Unsecured Corporate Bond Issue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 302,344 - 302,344 Note 6
2009

MLPC 1st Unsecured Corporate Bond Issue in - Held-to-maturity finandal assets - 99,955 - 99,955 Note 6
2009

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 200,976 - 200,976 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2009

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 302,016 - 302,016 Note 6
Unsecured Grporate Bonds Issue in 2009

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 200,268 - 200,268 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2009

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. First - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,656 - 100,656 Note 6
Debenture Issuing of 2009

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. First - Held-to-maturity financial asse - 100,551 - 100,551 Note 6
Debenture Issuing of 2009

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. First - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 176,095 - 176,095 Note 6
Debenture Issuing of 2009

FCFC 2st Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue i - Held-to-matuity financial assets - 100,271 - 100,271 Note 6
2010

FCFC 2st Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue i - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 200,770 - 200,770 Note 6
2010

TaipeiFubon Bank 5th Financial Debenturées - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 302,699 - 302,699 Note 6
Issue in 2010
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TaipeiFubon Bank 5th Financial Debenturées - Held-to-maturity financial assets - $ 201,281 - $ 201,281 Note 6
Issue in 2010

TaipeiFubon Bank 5th Financial Debenturdes - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,511 - 100,511 Note 6
Issue in 2010

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,324 - 100,324 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2010

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 301,921 - 301,921 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2010

Taiwan Power Company 2nd Secured Corporg - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,168 - 100,168 Note 6
BondA Issue in 2010

Taiwan Power Co 3rd Secured Corporate B&n - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 201,083 - 201,083 Note 6
Issue in 2010

Taiwan Power Co. 4th Secured Corporate BAr - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 300,488 - 300,488 Note 6
Issue in 2010

Taiwan Power Co. 4th Secured Corporate BArn - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 99,952 - 99,952 Note 6
Issue in 2010

Taiwan Power Co. 4th Semd Corporate Boné - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 199,905 - 199,905 Note 6
Issue in 2010

Mega Securities Co., Ltd. 1st Unsecured - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 300,000 - 300,000 Note 6
Corporate Bond Issue in 2010

NAN YA Company 2nd Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 50,366 - 50,366 Note 6
Bonds Issue in 2010

China Development Holding Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial asset - 202,120 - 202,120 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate BodIssue in 2010

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 3rd - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 299,727 - 299,727 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2010

Yuanta FHC 1st Unsecured Corporate BeAds - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 300,000 - 300,000 Note 6
Issue in 2011

China Steel Corporation 1st Unsecured Corpo - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,379 - 100,379 Note 6
BondsA Issue in 2011

China Steel Corporation 1shgecured Corporat - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 302,178 - 302,178 Note 6
BondsA Issue in 2011

FCFC 1st Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue i - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 299,529 - 299,529 Note 6
2011

TSMC 1st Uhsecured Corporate BowdIssue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,775 - 100,775 Note 6
2011

TSMC 1st Unsecured Corporate BeAdssue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 299,768 - 299,768 Note 6
2011

Fubon Finacial Holding Co., Ltd. 1st Unsecure - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 301,796 - 301,796 Note 6
Corporate Bond issued in 2011

Fubon Financial Holding Co., Ltd. 1st Unsecur - Held-to-maturity financial asets - 100,558 - 100,558 Note 6
Corporate Bond issued in 2011

HSBC Bank (Taiwan) Limited 1st Financial - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 201,193 - 201,193 Note 6
DebentureC Issue in 2011

HSBC Bank (Taiwan) Limited 1st Financial - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 300,000 - 300,000 Note 6
DebentureD Issue in 201

Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 149,774 - 149,774 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2011
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Formosa Petrochemical Corporation 3rd - Held-to-maturity financial assets - $ 199,675 - $ 199,675 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate Bonds Issue in 2011
Chinese Petroleum Corporation 2nd Unsecure - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 199,808 - 199,808 Note 6
Corporate BonéA Issue in 2012
Taiwan Power Co. 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 39,964 - 39,964 Note 6
Bond-A Issue in 2012
Taiwan Power Co. 1st Unsecured Corperat - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 99,910 - 99,910 Note 6
BondA Issue in 2012
Taiwan Power Co. 1st Unsecured Corporate - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 99,908 - 99,908 Note 6
Bond-2A Issue in 2012
TSMC 1st Unsecure@orporate BondA Issue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 200,328 - 200,328 Note 6
2012
TSMC 1st Unsecured Corporate BeAdssue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 199,831 - 199,831 Note 6
2012
TSMC 1st Unsecure@orporate BondA Issue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 99,916 - 99,916 Note 6
2012
TSMC 2nd Unsecured Corporate BeAddssue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 199,811 - 199,811 Note 6
2012
TSMC 3rd Unsecuredd@porate BonéA Issue in - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 199,808 - 199,808 Note 6
2012
KGI Securities Co., Ltd. 1st Unsecured Corpor - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 300,000 - 300,000 Note 6
Bonds in 2012
Fubon Fnancial Holding Co., Ltd. 1st Unsecure - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 300,000 - 300,000 Note 6
Corporate BonéA Issue in 2012
China Development Holding Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 150,061 - 150,061 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate BomdlIssue in 2012
China Development Holding Corporation 1st - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,084 - 100,084 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate BomdIssue in 2012
China Development Holding Corporatiort 1s - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 100,084 - 100,084 Note 6
Unsecured Corporate BomdlIssue in 2012
Eximbank 192nd Unsecured Financial - Held-to-maturity financial assets - 150,000 - 150,000 Note 6
Debentures
1 |[Senao International Co., |Stocks
Ltd. Senao Networks, Inc. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity metl 16,824 390,257 40 390,257 Note 1
Senao International (Samoa) Holding Ltd. Subsidiary Investments acamted for using equity methg 33,475 635,311 100 635,921 Note 8
(US$ 21,652 (US$ 21,673
(Note 10)
N.T.U. Innovation Incubation Corporation - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 1,200 12,000 9 12,000 Note 1
2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Stocks
Unigate Telecom Inc. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 200 1,701 100 1,701 Note 1
(Note 10)
Chief International Corp. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equitythod 200 13,286 100 13,286 Note 1
(US$ 4549 (US$ 459
(Note 10)
3 Link Information Service Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cesbncurrent 374 3,450 10 6,833 Note 1
(Continued)

-63-



September 30, 2012
No. | Held Company Nane Marketable Securities Type and Name Relationship with the Financial Statement Account Shares Carrying Value |Percentage ol Market Value or Note
Company (Thousands/ .
: (Note 5) Ownership | Net Asset Value
Thousand Units)
21Vianet Group. Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assets 208 $ 11,703 - $ 11,703 Note 4
(US$ 399 (US$ 399
3 [Chunghwa System Stocks
Integration Co., Ltd. Concord Technology Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accountddr using equity metho 1,500 19,117 100 19,117 Note 1
(RMB 4,138 (RMB 4,138
(Note 10)
7 |Spring House Stocks
Entertainment Tech. InqCeylon Innovation Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using eguitethog 100 894 100 894 Note 1
(Note 10)
8 |Light Era Development |Stocks
Co., Ltd. Yao Yong Real Property Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 83,290 2,810,581 100 1,913,124 Note 1
(Note 10)
9 |Chunghwa Telecom Stocks
Singapore Pte., Ltd.  |ST-2 Satellite Ventures Pte., Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met 18,102 548,243 38 548,243 Note 1
(SG$ 22,920 (SG$ 22920
14 |Chunghwa Investment CgStocks
Ltd. Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 10,317 138,054 53 138,054 Note 1
(Note 10)
Chunghwa Investmentatding Co., Ltd. (CIHC) |Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 1,432 19,504 100 19,504 Note 1
(US$ 666 (US$ 666
(Note 10)
PandaMonium Company Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity mel 602 - 43 - Note 1
CHIEF Telecom Inc. Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met 2,000 26,463 4 26,463 Note 1
(Note 10)
Senao International Co., Ltd. Equity-method investee|Investments accountedrfusing equity methg 1,001 47,107 - 109,109 Note 4
(Note 10)
Tatung Technology Inc. - Financial assets carried at cesbncurrent 3,542 60,081 11 54,690 Note 1
Digimax Inc. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurreh 2,000 10,928 4 10,575 Note 1
iD Branding Ventures - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 2,250 22,500 3 20,543 Note 1
Uni Display Inc. - Financial assets carried at coesbncurrent 4,630 32,410 2 14,4% Note 1
A2peak Power Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cesbncurrent 990 - 3 - Note 1
CoaTronics Inc. - Financial assets carried at cesbncurrent 1,200 8,400 6 1,091 Note 1
VisEra Technologies Company Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 649 29,371 - 12,889 Note 1
Ultra Fine Optical Technology Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at coesbncurrent 1,800 18,000 8 16,314 Note 1
Procrystal Technology Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 1,350 24,319 - 23,665 Note7
Tons Lightology Inc. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 1,113 66,150 4 37,797 Note7
Alder Optomechanical Corp. - Financial assets carrietl @st- noncurrent 490 23,310 2 11,139 Notel
Aide Energy (Cayman) Holding Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cesbncurrent 800 4,829 1 6,149 Note 1
Mediapro Technology Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cesbncurent 55 44,871 1 5,816 Notel
Fashion Guide Co., Ltd. - Financial assets carried at cosbncurrent 400 2,000 2 351 Note 1
PChome Store Inc. - Available-for-sale financial assetsioncurrent 325 14,072 - 30,582 Note 4
IC Plus Corp - Available-for-sale financial assetsoncurrent 210 2,058 - 2,110 Note 4
(Continued)
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Beneficiary certificates (mutual fund)
Mega Diamond Bond Fund - Available-for-sale finawial assets 4,139 $ 50,000 - $ 50,224 Note 3
Union Money Market Fund - Available-for-sale financial assets 7,841 100,000 - 100,410 Note 3
Bond
Hua Nan Financial Holdings Company 1st - Available-for-sale financial assets 500 50,256 - 50,755 Note 9
Unsecured Subordinate @arate Bonds Issué
in 2006
18 |Concord Technology Co.,|Stocks
Ltd. Glory Network System Service (Shanghai) Co{Subsidiary Investments accounted foring equity metho 1,500 19,117 100 19,117 Note 1
Ltd. (RMB 4,138 (RMB 4,138
(Note 10)
20 |Chunghwa Precision Test|Stocks
Tech. Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. USA CorporajSubsidiary Investments accountedrfusing equity methag 400 12,154 100 12,154 Note 1
(Uss 412 (UsSs 412
(Note 10)
22 |Senao International Stocks
(Samoa) Holding Ltd. |Senao International HK Limited Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equitgthod 32,760 613,307 100 613,307 Note 8
(US$ 20,903 (US$ 20,903
(Note 10)
HopeTech Technologies Limited Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met 5,240 21,571 45 21,571 Note 8
(USs$ 73H (Uss 73H
23 |Senao International HK  [Stocks
Limited Senao Trading (Fujian) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - 226,817 100 226,817 Note 8
(Uss 7,730 (US$ 7,730
(Note 10)
Senao tternational Trading (Shanghai) Co., Lt(Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - 158,344 100 158,344 Note 8
(US$ 5,397 (US$ 5,397
(Note 10)
Senao International Trading (Shanghai) Co., L{Subsidiary Investmentsaccounted for using equity meth - 53,850 100 53,850 |[Notes 8 an
(US$ 1,839 (US$ 1,839 11
(Note 10)
Senao International Trading (Jiangsu) Co., LtdSubsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - 171,387 100 171,387 Note 8
(US$ 5,841) (US$ 5,84)
(Note 10)
24 |Chunghwa Investment  |Stocks
Holding Co., Ltd. CHI One Investment Co., Limited Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met 6,520 9,425 100 9,425 Note 1
(HK$ 2,563 (HK$ 2,563
(Note 10)
(Continued)
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26 |CHI One Investment Co., |Stocks
Limited Xiamen Sertec Business Technology Co., Ltd.|[Equity-method investee|Investments accounted for using equity met - $ 9,191 49 $ 9,191 Note 1
(RMB 1,972 (RMB 1,972
(Note 10)
27 |Prime Asia Investments |Stocks
Group, Ltd. (B.V.1.) Chunghwa Hsingta Company Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - 156,198 100 156,198 Note 1
(RMB33,519 (RMB 33,519
(Note 10)
29 |Chunghwa Hsingta Stocks
Company Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co., Ltd. Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - 130,913 100 130,913 Note 1
(RMB 28,093 (RMB 28,093
(Note 10)
Jiangsu Zhenhua Information Technology Subsidiary Investments accounted for using equity met - 25,285 75 25,285 Note 1
Company, LLC (RMB 5,429 (RMB 5,429
(Note 10)
Note 1: The net asset values of investees were based on unreviewed financial statements.
Note 2: New Prospect Investments Holdings Ltd. (B.V.l.) was incorporated in March 2006, but not yet begun operation as of Sépkohher 3
Note 3: The net aset values of beneficiary certificates (mutual fund) were based on the net asset values on September 30, 2012.
Note 4: Market value was based on the closing price of September 30, 2012.
Note 5: Showing at their original carrying amounts without adjustméor fair values, except for hetd-maturity financial assets.
Note 6: The net asset values of investees were based on amortized cost.
Note 7: Market value of emerging stock was based on the average trading price on September 30, 2012.
Note 8: The ret asset values of investees were based on reviewed financial statements.
Note 9: The market value is determined by the hundred price of transaction market on September 30, 2012.
Note 10: The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.
Note 11:The Englsh name is the same as the above entity; however, the Chinese names included in the respective Articles of Incorpdiftdiens. are
(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

MARKETABLE SECURITIES ACQUIRED AND DISPOSED OF AT COSTS OR PRICES OF AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID -IN CAPITAL

NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 3

Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Ending Balance
- Shares Shares Shares . Shares
No. Company Name Marketable S,\? curities Type and Financial Statement Account |Counter-party Natgre Of. (Thousands/| Amount (Thousands/ (Thousands/ Carrying Gain (Loss) | (Thousands/| Amount
ame Relationship Th Amount Amount Value .
ousand (Note 1) Thousand Thousand (Note 1) on Disposal | Thousand (Note 1)
Units) Units) Units) Units)
0 |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. |Stocks
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Investments accounted for usin - Subsidiary 223,190 $ 891,526 81,900| $ 313299 - -1 8 -1 $ - 305,090| $ 1,176,825
equity method (Notes 3 and §
Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd.|Investments accounted for usin - Subsidiary 178,000 1,742,779 - - 97,900 979,000 979,000 - 80,100 674,506
equity method (Note 4) (Notes 3 and 5
China Airlines Ltd. Available-for-sale financial asse - - - - 263,622 3,092,287 - - - - 263,622 3,092,287
- noncurrent
Beneficiary certificates
(mutual fund)
HSBC GlIbl Emerging Markets |Available-for-sale financial asse - - 304 172,231 - - 304 181,011 172,231 8,780 - -
Bol A Inc.
Templeton Global Bond A (ACJAvailable-for-sale financial asse - - 418 307,114 - - 418 308,560 307,114 1,446 - -
PIMCO Global Investment GradAvailable-for-sale financial asse - - 751 307,245 320 148,873 - - - - 1,071 456,118
Credit- Ins H Acc
Fidelity Funds- US Dollar Bond |Available-for-sale financial asse - - - - 778 297,283 - - - - 778 297,283
Furd Y-ACC-USD
HSBC Global Investment FundgAvailable-for-sale financial asse - - - - 273 177,180 273 172,956 177,180 (4,224 - -
Global Emerging Markets Bor
ID
Eastpring InvestmertS Available-for-sale financial asse - - - - 433 149,190 - - - - 433 149,190
Corporate Bond Fund
Bonds
TSMC 1st Unseared Corporate |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - 300,000 - - - 300,000 300,000 - - -
Bond-C Issue in 2002 (Note 2) (Note 2)
TSMC 1st Unsecured Corporat¢Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - 300,000 - - - 300,000 300,000 - - -
Bond-C Issue in 2002 (Note 2) (Note 2)
TSMC 1st Unsecured CorporatgHeld-to-maturity financial assets - - - 300,000 - 100,000 - - - - - 400,000
Bond-A Issue in 2011 (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
TSMC 1st Unsecured Corporat¢Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 500,000 - - - - - 500,000
Bond-A Issue in 2012 (Note 2) (Note 2)
TSMC 2nd Unsecured Cporate |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Bond-A Issue in 2012 (Note 2) (Note 2)
TSMC 3rd Unsecured Corporat{Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Bond-A Issue in 2012 (Note 2) (Note 2)
Formosa Petrochemical Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - 500,000 - - - 250,000 250,000 - - 250,000
Corporation 2nd Unsecured (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
Corporate Bonds Issue in 20¢
Chinese Petroleum Corporation/Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - 100,000 - 200,000 - - - - - 300,000
1st Unsecured Corporate (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
BondsC Issue in 2006
Chinese Petroleum Corporation/Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
2nd Unsecured Corporate (Note 2) (Note 2)
BondsA Issue in 2012
China Stell Corporation 1st Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - 100,000 - 300,000 - - - - - 400,000
Unsecured Grporate Bonds\ (Note 2) (Note 2) (Note 2)
Issue in 2011
(Continued)
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Beginning Balance Acquisition Disposal Ending Balance
- Shares Shares Shares . Shares
No. Company Name Marketable S,\? curities Type and Financial Statement Account |Counter-party Nature of (Thousands/| Amount (Thousands/ (Thousands/ Carrying Gain (Loss) | (Thousands/|  Amount
ame Relationship Amount Amount Value .
Thousand (Note 1) Thousand Thousand (Note 1) on Disposal | Thousand (Note 1)
Units) Units) Units) Units)

Taiwan Power Co. 3rd Unsecur{Held-to-maturity financial assets - - -1 % - - | $ 200,000 - -1 8 -1 S - - | $ 200,000
Corporate BoneC Issue in (Note 2) (Note 2)
2006

Taiwan Power Co. 1st Unsecur¢Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 140,000 - - - - - 140,000
Corporate Bon€A Issue in (Note 2) (Note 2)
2012

Taiwan Power Co. 2nd UnseculHeld-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 100,000 - - - - - 100,000
Corporate BondA Issue in (Note 2) (Note 2)
2012

Yuanta Securities Co., Ltd. 1st [Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - 200,000 - - - 200,000 200,000 - - -
Unsecured Corporate Bonés (Note 2) (Note 2)

Issue in2007

KGI Securities Co., Ltd. 1st Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 300,000 - - - - - 300,000
Unsecured Corporate Bonds (Note 2) (Note 2)
2011

China Development Holding  [Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - 400,000 - - - 400,000 400,0® - - -
Corporation 1st Unsecured (Note 2) (Note 2)

Corporate Bonds Issue in 20¢

China Development Holding  |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 350,000 - - - - - 350,000
Corporation 1st Unsecured (Note 2) (Note 2)
Corporate Bond#\ Issue in
2011

Fubon Finandl Holding Co., Ltd Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 400,000 - - - - - 400,000
1st Unsecured Corporate Born (Note 2) (Note 2)
Issued in 2011

Fubon Financial Holding Co., LtHeld-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 300,000 - - - - - 300,000
1st Unsecured Corporate (Note 2) (Note 2)
BondsA Issued in 2012

HSBC Bank (Taiwan) Limited 1{Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 200,000 - - - - - 200,000
Financial Debentur€ Issue in (Note 2) (Note 2)
2011

Eximoank 192nd Unsecured |Held-to-maturity financial assets - - - - - 150,000 - - - - - 150,000
Financial Debenture (Note 2) (Note 2)

1 |Senao International Co., Ltd. [Stocks
Senao International (Samoa) |Investments accounted for usin - Subsidiary 15,875 466,517 17,600 522,080 - - - - 33,475 988,597
Holding Ltd. equity method (US$ 15,875 (Us$ 17,600 (US$ 33,475
(Notes 3 and 5
22 [Senao International (Samoa) |Stocks
Holding Ltd. Senao International HK Limited|Investments accounted for usin - Subsidiary 15,180 444,712 17,580 521,474 - - - - 32,760 966,186
equity method (US$ 15,180 (US$ 17,580 (US$ 32,760
(Notes 3 and 5
23 |[Senao International HK Limite(Stocks

Senao International Trading Investmend accounted for using - Subsidiary - 115,971 - 147,765 - - - - - 263,736

(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. equity method (US$ 4,000 (Us$ 5,000 (US$ 9,000
(Notes 3 and 5

Senao International Trading Investments accounted for usin - Subsidiary - 116,821 - 221,972 - - - - - 338,793

(Fujian) Co., Ltd. equity method (US$ 4,000 (Uss 7,500 (US$ 11,500
(Notes 3 and 5

Senao International Trading Investments accounted for usin - Subsidiary - 148,431 - 149,313 - - - - - 297,726
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. equity method (US$ 5,000 (US$ 5,000 (US$ 10,000

(Notes 3 and 5
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Note 1: Showing at their original carrying amounts without adjustments for fair values.

Note 2: Stated at its nominal amounts.

Note 3: The ending balance includes equity in earnings or losses of equity method investees and cumulative transaction adjustments.
Note 4. The amount decrease was because of capital reduction.

Note 5: The amountvas eliminated upon consolidation.

(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TOTAL PURCHASES FROM OR SALES TO RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID

NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

-IN CAPITAL

TABLE 4

Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/Accour_ﬂs Payable or
Nature of Receivable
No. Company Name Related Party Relationship Ending Balance
Purchase/Sale Amount % to Total Payment Terms Units Price Payment Tams (Note 1) % to Total
0 |[Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd|Senao International Co., Ltd.[Subsidiary Purchase $ 7,108,110 7 30-90 days - - $ (1,109,443 9)
(Notes 3and 9 (Notes 5and 9
Sales 165,641 - 30 days - - 187,313 1
(Notes 4 and 9 (Notes 6 and 9
Chunghwa System IntegratigSubsidiary Purchase 604,567 1 30 days - - (311,766 (2)
Co., Ltd. (Notes 7 and 9 (Note 9)
Taiwan International StandarEquity-method Purchase 298,361 - 30-90 days - - (77,993 D
Electronics Co., Ltd. investee
ST-2 Satellite Ventures Pte. |[Equity-method Purchase 307,817 - 30 days - - (236,261 2)
Ltd. investee
Chunghwa Telecom Global |Subsidiary Purchase 200,234 - 90 days - - (63,823 )
Inc. (Note 9) (Note 9)
CHIEF Telecom Inc. Subsidiary Purchase 255,720 - 30 days - - (65,559 )
(Note 9) (Notes 5and 9
Sales 198,036 - 60 days - - 34,975 -
(Note 9) (Notes 8 and ¢
Sonet Entertainment Taiwan Equity-method Sales 243,422 - 60 days - - 25,874 -
investee
Chunghwa International Subsidiary Purchase 157,995 - 30 days - - (57,179 -
Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. (Note 9) (Note 9)
InforExplorer Co., Ltd. Equity-method Purchase 141,458 - 90 days - - (67,553 Q)
investee
1 |Senao International Co., Ltd.Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd|Parent company |Purchase 117,223 1 30 days - - (30,433 2)
(Notes 4 and 9 (Notes 6 and 9
Sales 7,152,553 28 30-90 days - - 1,114,099 58
(Notes 3and 9 (Notes 5 and 9
2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd|Parent company |Purchase 198,036 26 60 days - - (34,887 (36)
(Note 9) (Notes 8 and 9
Sales 255,720 23 30 days - - 67,576 45
(Note 9) (Notes 5and 9
3 |Chunghwa System IntegratigChunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd|Parent company |Sales 1,605,598 81 30 days - - 311,766 87
Co., Ltd. (Notes 7 and 9 (Note 9)
(Continued)
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Transaction Details Abnormal Transaction Notes/ ACCO“'.“S Payable or
Nature of Receivable
No. Company Name RelatedParty Relationshi Ending Balance
P Purchase/Sale Amount % to Total Payment Terms Units Price Payment Terms (N%te 1) % to Total
4 |Chunghwa Internatica Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd|Parent company |Sale $ 157,995 41 30 days - - $ 57,174 38
Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. (Note 9) (Note 9)
5 |Chunghwa Telecom Global |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd|Parent company |Sales 200,234 - 90 days - - 63,823 85
Inc. (Note 9) (Note 9)

Note 1: Excluding payment and receipts collected in trust for others.

Note 2: Transaction terms with the related parties were determined in accordance with mutual agreements when there werdraossictivers with third parties. Other transactions with related parties were not significantly different from
those with third parties.

Note 3: The difference was because Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. classified the amount as property, plant and agdifeeso International Co., Ltd. classified the amount as advances from customers.
Note 4: The difference was because Senao International Co., Ltd. classified the amount as operating expenses.

Note 5: The difference was because Chunghwa Telecom Ca.classified the amount as amounts collected for others.

Note 6: The difference was because Senao International Co., Ltd. classified the amount as other payable.

Note 7: The difference was because Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. classified the amounttasyinpesperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets.

Note 8: The difference was because CHIEF Telecom Inc. classified the amount as other current liabilities.

Note 9: The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.

(Concluded)
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CHUNGHWA T ELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

TABLE 5

RECEIVABLES FROM RELATED PARTIES AMOUNTING TO AT LEAST NT$100 MILLION OR 20% OF THE PAID  -IN CAPITAL
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Turnover Overdue Amounts Received Allowance for
No. Company Name Related Party Nature of Relationship Ending Balance Rate . in Subsequent
Amounts Action Taken . Bad Debts
(Note 1) Period
0 |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Senao International Co., Ltd. Subsidiary $ 187,313 5.39 $ - $ 84,002 $ -
(Note 2)
1 |Senao International Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Parent company 1,473,229 8.05 - 941 -
(Note 2)
3 |Chunghwa System Integration Co., LtChunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Parent company 311,66 431 - 184,803 -
(Note 2)

Note 1: Payments and receipts collected in trust for others are excluded from the accounts receivable for calculating thetéurnover ra

Note 2: The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NAMES, LOCATIONS, AND OTHER INFORMATION OF INVESTEES IN WHICH THE COMPANY EXERCISES SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE
NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwisgpecified)

TABLE 6

Original Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2012 Net Income | Recognized Gain
No. Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Businesses and Products September 30, | Decamber 31, Shares Percentage of Carrving Value (Loss) of the (Loss) Note
2012 2011 (Thousands) | Ownership (%) ying Investee (Notes 1 and 2)
0 |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Lt¢Senao International Co., Ltd Taiwan Selling and maintaining mobile phones and, $ 1,065,813 $ 1,065,813 71,773 28 $ 1,532,833 $ 1,122,442 $ 311,346 |Subsidiary
peripheral products (Note 4) (Note 4)
Light Era Development Co.,|Taiwan Housing, office building development, rent 3,000,000 3,000,000 300,000 100 3,644,691 522,870 523,445 |Subsidiary
Ltd. and sale services (Note 4) (Note 4)

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.{Hong Kong International telecommunications IP fictitiou 1,195,518 882,219 305,090 100 1,176,825 2,828 2,828 |Subsidiary
internet and internet transfer services (Note 4) (Note 4)

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Telecommunication wholesale, internet 574,112 574,112 26,383 100 754,935 77,543 77,543 |Subsidiary

Singapore Pte., Ltd. transfer services international data and Iq (Note 4) (Note 4)
distance call wholesales to carriers
Chunghwa System Integrati{ Taiwan Providing communication and information 838,506 838,506 60,000 100 701,011 45,092 39,828 |Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. aggregative services (Note 4) (Note 4)
Chunghwa Investment Co., |Taiwan Telecommunications, telecommunications 759,709 1,738,709 80,100 89 674,506 (96,855 (87,387 |Subsidiary
Ltd. valueadded services and other related (Note 4) (Note 4)
professional investment
Taiwan International StandalTaiwan Manufacturing, selling, designing, and 164,000 164,000 1,760 40 594,866 613,680 241,518 |Equity-method
Electronics Co., Ltd. maintaining of telecommunications syste investee
and equipment

CHIEF Teleconinc. Taiwan Internet communication and internet data 482,165 482,165 37,942 69 565,593 122,265 85,742 |Subsidiary
center (Al DCO) ser (Note 4) (Note 4)

InfoExplorer Co., Ltd. Taiwan IT solution provider, IT application 283,500 283,500 22,498 33 268,414 32,678 10,938 |Equity-method
consutation, system integration and investee
package solution

Viettel-CHT Co., Ltd. Vietham IDC services 288,327 288,327 - 30 262,852 43,055 12,922 |Equity-method

investee

Huada Digital Corporation |Taiwan Providing software service 250,000 250,000 25,000 50 245,214 (20,950 (5,479 |Equity-method

investee

Chunghwa International Taiwan Yellow pages sales and advegtisent service 150,000 150,000 15,000 100 189,275 29,688 29,688 |Subsidiary

Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. (Note 4) (Note 4)
Prime Asia Investments British Virgin Islands |Investment 206,089 206,089 6,960 100 156,058 (26,121 (26,119 |Subsidiary
Group Ltd. (B.V.1.) (Note 4) (Note 4)

Skysoft Co., Ltd. Taiwan Providing of music odine, software, 67,025 67,025 4,438 30 122,988 123,581 35,763 |Equity-method
electronic information, and advertisemen investee
services

Dian Zuan Integrating Taiwan Information technology service and general 129,000 114,640 12,900 33 120,499 (13,359 (4,759 |Equity-method

Marketing Co., Ltd. advertisement service (Note 4) (Note 4) investee

Spring House Entertainent |Taiwan Network services, producing digital 62,209 62,209 7,015 56 117,212 55,063 31,419 |Subsidiary

Inc. entertainment contents and broadband v (Note 4) (Note 4)
sound terrace development
Chunghwa Telecom Global,|United States International data and internet services and 70,429 70,429 6,000 100 98,827 14,159 15,850 |[Subsidiary
Inc. long distance call wholesales to carriers (Note 4) (Note 4)
KingWay Technology Co., |Taiwan Publishing booksdata processing and 71,770 71,770 1,703 33 72,253 34,376 7,104 |Equity-method
Ltd. software services investee
Smartfun Digital Co., Ltd. |Taiwan Software retail 65,000 65,000 6,500 65 47,819 (18,819 (12,309 |Subsidiary
(Note 4) (Note 4)

So-net Entertainment Taiwal Taiwan Online service and sale of computer hardw, 60,008 60,008 3,429 30 32,198 (7,979 (2,348 |Equity-method

investee

Chunghwa Telecom VietnanVietnam Information anccommunications technology 43,847 43,847 - 100 30,093 (6,799 (6,799 |Subsidiary

Co., Ltd. international circuit, and intelligent energy (Note 4) (Note 4)
network service
(Continued)
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Original Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2012 Net Income | Recognized Gain
No. Investor Company Investee Company L ocation Main Businesses and Products September 30, | December 31, Shares Percentage of Carrving Value (Loss) of the (Loss) Note
2012 2011 (Thousands) | Ownership (%) ying Investee (Notes 1 and 2)
Chunghwa Telecom Japan |Japan Telecom business, information process anq  $ 17,291 $ 17,291 1 100 $ 27,836 $ 6,096 $ 6,096 |Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. information provide service, developmen (Note 4) (Note 4)
and sale of software and consulting servi
in telecommunication
Chunghwa Sochamp Taiwan License plate recognition system 20,400 20,400 2,040 51 14,800 (10,883 (5,559 |Subsidiary
Technology Inc. (Note 4) (Note 4)
New Prospect Investments |British Virgin Islands |Investment - - - 100 - - - |Subsidiary
Holdings Ltd. (B.V.l.) (Note 3) (Note 3) (Notes 3 and 4) (Notes 3 and 4)
1 |Senao International Co., Ltd Senao Networks, Inc. Taiwan Telecommunication facilities manufactures 206,190 206,190 16,824 40 390,257 234,164 94,913 |Equity-method
and sales. investee
Senao International (Samoa Samoa Islands International investment. 988,597 466,517 33,475 100 635,311 (189,723 (189,79) |Subsidiary
Holding Ltd. (US$ 33,475 (US$ 15,875 (US$ 21,652 (US$ (6,385) (US$ (6,387)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Unigate Telecom Inc. Taiwan Telecommunication and internsgrvice. 2,000 2,000 200 100 1,701 (203 (103 |Subsidiary
(Note 4) (Note 4)
Chief International Corp. Samoa Islands Network communication and engine room 6,068 6,068 200 100 13,286 3,454 3,454 |Subsidiary
hiring (Uss 200 (US$ 200 (UsS$ 459 (Uss 116 (Uss 116
(Note 4) (Note 4)
3 |Chunghwa System Integratg Concord Technology Co., LtBrunei Providing advanced business solutions to 47,321 31,973 1,500 100 19,117 (1,74) (1,741 |Subsidiary
Co., Ltd. telecommunications (US$ 1,500 (US$ 1,010 (RMB 4,138 (RMB (370) (RMB (370)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
7 |Spring House Entertainmen{Ceylon Innovation Co., Ltd. |Taiwan Internation&trading, general advertisement 1,000 1,000 100 100 894 (60 (60) |Subsidiary
Tech. Inc. and book publishment service (Note 4) (Note 4)
8 |Light Era Development Co.,|Yao Yong Real Property Co|Taiwan Real estate leasy business 2,793,667 2,793,667 83,290 100 2,810,581 38,790 38,790 |Subsidiary
Ltd. Ltd. (Note 4) (Note 4)
9 |Chunghwa Telecom ST-2 Satellite Ventures Pte.)|Singapore Operation of ST2 telecommunicatiosatellite 409,061 409,061 18,102 38 548,243 191,533 73,031 |Equity-method
Singapore Pte., Ltd. Ltd. (SG$ 18,109 (SG$ 18,103 (SG$ 22,920 (SG$ 8,112 (SG$ 3,093 investee
14 |Chunghwa Investment Co., |Chunghwa Precision Test |Taiwan Semiconductor testing components and pri 91,875 91,875 10,317 53 138,054 40,303 21,437 |Subsidiary
Ltd. Tech Co. L td. circuit board industry production and (Note 4) (Note 4)
marketing of electronic products
Chunghwa Investment Burnei General investment 46,035 34,483 1,432 100 19,504 (2,959 (2,959 |Subsidiary
Holding Co., Ltd. (US$ 1,432 (US$ 1,043 (Uss 666) (Uss  (99) (Uss  (99)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
Panda Monium Company Lt{Cayman The productiorof animation 20,000 20,000 602 43 - - - |Equity-method
(US$ 602 (USs$ 602 investee
CHIEF Telecom Inc. Taiwan Telecommunication and internet service 20,000 20,000 2,000 4 26,463 122,265 4,475 |Equity-method
investe
Senao International Co., Ltd Taiwan Selling and maintaining mobile phones and 49,731 49,731 1,001 - 47,107 1,122,276 4,377 |Equity-method
peripheral products investee
18 |Concord Technology Co., LiGlory Network §stem China Providing advanced business solutions to 47,321 31,973 1,500 100 19,117 (1,74) (1,741 |Subsidiary
Service (Shanghai) Co., telecommunications (Us$ 1,500 (US$ 1,010 (RMB 4,138 (RMB (370) (RMB (370)
Ltd. (Note 4) (Note 4)
20 |Chunghwa Precision Test |Chunghwa Precision Test |United States Semiconductor testing components and pri 12,504 12,504 400 100 12,154 4,034 4,034 |Subsidiary
Tech. Co., Ltd. Tech. USA Corporation circuit board industry production and (Uss 400 (UsSs 400 (Uss 412 (Uss 139 (US$ 139
marketing of electronic products (Note 4) (Note 4)
(Continued)
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Original Investment Amount Balance as of September 30, 2012 Net Income | Recognized Gain
No. Investor Company Investee Company Location Main Businesses and Products September 30, | December 31, Shares Percentage of Carrving Value (Loss) of the (Loss) Note
2012 2011 (Thousands) | Ownership (%) ying Investee (Notes 1 and 2)
22 |Senao International (SamoaSenao International HK Hong Kong International investment. $ 966,186 $ 444,712 32,760 100 $ 613,307 $ (190,399 $ (190,399 |Subsidiary
Holding Ltd. Limited. (US$ 32,760 (US$ 15,180Q (US$ 20,9029 (US$ (6,407) (US$ (6,407)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
HopeTech Technologies Hong Kong Information technology and 21,177 21,177 5,240 45 21,571 1,507 706 |Equity-method
Limited telecommunication products sales. (Uss 675 (Uss 679 (Uss 739 (Uss 53 (Uss 24) investee
24 |Chunghwa Investment CHI One Investment Co., |Hong Kong General investment 26,035 14,483 6,520 100 9,425 (2,919 (2,919 |Subsidiary
Holding Co., Ltd. Limited (HK$ 6,520 (HK$ 3,929 (HK$ 2,563 (HK$ (762) (HK$ (762)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
26 |CHI One Investment Co., |Xiamen Sertec Business |China Customer Services and platform rental 25,414 13,862 - 49 9,191 (5,959 (2,919 |Equity-method
Limited Technology Co., Ltd. activities (RMB 5,390 (RMB 2,963 (RMB 1,972 (RMB (1,270) (RMB (622) investee
23 |Senao International HK Senao Trading (Fujian) Co.,|China Information technology services and sale o 338,793 116,821 - 100 226,817 (66,8779 (66,8779 |Subsidiary
Limited. Ltd. communication products (US$ 11,500 (US$ 4,000 (Uss 7,730 (US$ (2,251) (US$ (2,251)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
Senao International Trading|China Information technology services and sale o 297,726 148,413 - 100 158,344 (67,409 (67,404 |Subsidiary
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. communication products (US$ 10,000 (US$ 5,000 (US$ 5,399 (US$ (2,268) (US$ (2,268)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
Senao lternational Trading |China Information technology services and sale o 57,860 57,860 - 100 53,850 (3,909 (3,909 |Subsidiary
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. communication products (US$ 2,000 (US$ 2,000 (US$ 1,835 (Uss (131) (US$ (1312) |(Note 5)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
Senao International Trading|China Information technology services and sale o 263,736 115,971 - 100 171,387 (52,1709 (52,17Q |Subsidiary
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. communication products (US$ 9,000 (US$ 4,000 (US$ 5,84) (US$ (1,756) (US$ (1,756)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
27 |Prime Asia Investments Chunghwa Hsingta Co., Ltd]Hong Kong Investment 206,088 206,088 - 100 156,198 (26,121 (26,12) |Subsidiary
Group, Ltd. (B.V.1.) (RMB 45,448 (RMB 45,449 (RMB 33,519 (RMB (5,569) (RMB (5,569)
(Note 4) (Note 4)
29 |Chunghwa Hsingta CompanChunghwa Telecom (China)|China Planning and design of energy conservatio 177,176 177,176 - 100 130,913 (23,090 (23,090 |Subsidiary
Ltd. Co., Ltd. and sofware and hardware system servic, (RMB 39,376 (RMB 39,379 (RMB 28,093 (RMB (4,923) (RMB (4,923)
and integration of information system (Note 4) (Note 4)
Jiangsu Zhenhua Informatio|China Intelligent energy conserving and intelligen 28,912 - - 75 25,285 (4,043 (3,030 |Subsidiary
Technology Company, LL building services (RMB 6,072 (RMB 5,426 (RMB (862) (RMB (646)
(Note 4) (Note4)
Note 1: The equity in net income (loss) of investees was based on unreviewed financial statements except the equity in eanamgstefradional Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
Note 2: The equity in net income (loss) investees includes amortization of differences between the investment cost and net value and elimination of unreatitieddran
Note 3: New Prospect Investments Holdings Ltd. (B.V.l.) was incorporated in March 2006, but has not yet begun egeséSaptember 30, 2012. Chunghwa has 100% ownership right in an amount of US$1 in the holding company.
Note 4: The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.
Note 5: The English name is the same as the above entity; however, the Chinese namesimthedespective Articles of Incorporations are different.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INVESTMENT IN MAINLAND CHINA
NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, in Thousands @J.S. Dollars)

TABLE 7

Investment Flows Accumulated Accumulated
Accumulated ;
Outflow of Outrlow of % Ownership of Investment Carrying Value Inward
. . Total Amount of | Investment Investment from | <. P . as of Remittance of
Investee Main Businesses and Products S . Investment from ; Direct or Indirect Gain (Loss) )
Paid-in Capital Type . Outflow Inflow Taiwan as of September 30, | Earnings as of
Taiwan as of Investment (Note 2)
January 1, 2012 September 30, 2012 September 30,
' 2012 2012
Glory Network System Service |Providing advanced business solutiof] $ 47,321 Note 1 $ 31,973 $ 15,348 $ 47,321 100% $ (1,743 $ 19,117 $ -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. to telecommunications (Note 7) (Note 7)
Xiamen Sertec Business Customer services and platform renti 51,552 Note 1 13,862 11,552 25,414 49% (2,919 9,191 -
Technology Co., Ltd. activities (Note 7) (Note 7)
Senao Trading (Fujian) Co., Ltd.|Information technology services and 338,793 Note 1 116,821 221,972 338,793 100% (66,877 226,817 -
sale of communid&on products (Note 7) (Note 7)
Senao International Trading Information technology services and 297,726 Note 1 148,413 149,313 297,726 100% (67,409 158,334 -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. sale of communication prodisc (Note 7) (Note 7)
Senao International Trading Information technology services and 57,860 Note 1 57,860 - 57,860 100% (3,909 53,850 -
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note 8) | sale of communication products (Note 7) (Note 7)
Senao International Trading Information technology services and 263,736 Note 1 115,971 147,765 263,736 100% (52,170 171,387 -
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. sale of communication products (Note 7) (Note 7)
Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co.|Energy conserving and providing 177,176 Note 1 177,176 - 177,176 100% (23,0909 130,913 -
Ltd. installation, design and maintenan( (Note 7) (Note 7)
services
Jiangsu Zhenghua Information |Intelligent energy serving and 38,549 Note 1 28,912 - 28,912 75% (3,03) 25,285 -
Technology Company, LLC intelligent building services (Note 7) (Note 7)
Accumulated Investment in . Upper Limit on Investment
Mainland China as of Inlﬁiigggtn?ggmﬁfséﬁgo&ﬁg Ab y Stipulated by Investment
September 30, 2012 ' Commission, MOEA
$ 47,321 $ 47,321 $ 404,366
(US$ 1,500 (Uss 1,500 (Note 3)
25,414 79,882 566,905
(US$ 820 (Uss 2,500 (Note 4)
958,115 958,115 3,091,741
(US$ 32,500 (US$ 32,500 (Note 5)
177,176 177,176 217,050,656
(US$ 6,000 (US$ 6,000 (Note 6)
28,912 141,077 217,050,656
(US$ 960 (USs 4,800 (Note 6)
(Continued)
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

Note 8:

Investments were through an holding company registered in a third region.

Recognitionofine st ment gains (|l osses) was calculated based on

The amout was calculated based on the net assets value of Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd.

The amount was calculated based on the consolidated net assets value of Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd.

The amount was calculated based on the coraelidnet assets value of Senao International Co., Ltd.
The amount was calculated based on the consolidated net assets value of Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd.

The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.

t h e stinentvgairs (losses) of Samao Inewatienal €ad, Ltd. vas aalcdated hased onahe evieeved fiirmncial statemenist

The English name is the same the above entity; however, the Chinese names included in the respective Articles of Incorporations are different.
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CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INTERCOMPANY RELATIONSHIPS AND SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Amount in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

TABLE 8

Transaction Details
No C lated Clationsh r5al
Year ; ompany Name Related Party Relationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

2012 0 Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Senao International Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable $ 36,775 - -
Accounts payable 1,109,444 - -

Accrued custodial receipts 150,538 - -

Amounts cdlected for others 363,785 - -

Revenues 165,641 - -

Nonroperating income and gains 5 - -

Operating costs and expenses 7,108,110 - 4

Property, plant and equipment 21,527 - -

Customer 6s deposits 1,181 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 1 Accounts receivable 34,975 - -
Accounts payable 65,554 - -

Amounts collected for others 3,293 - -

Revenues 198,036 - -

Operating costs and expenses 255,720 - -

Property, plant and equipment 1,497 - -

Customer 6s deposits 333 - -

Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 124 - -
Accounts payable 24 - -

Revenues 1,848 - -

Nonroperating income and gains 295 - -

Chunghwa Intern@nal Yellow Pages Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 8,768 - -
Accounts payable 57,174 - -

Amounts collected for others 94,387 - -

Accrued custodial receipts 16,293 - -

Revenues 16,705 - -

Operating costs and expes 157,995 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 22,806 - -
Accrued custodial receipts 12,998 - -

Accounts payable 287,894 - -

Payables to contractors 23,872 - -

Revenue 5,493 - -

Non-operating income and gains 614 - -

Operating costs and expenses 604,567 - -

Property, plant and equipment 785,842 - -

Office supplies 2,030 - -

Work in process 3,684 - -

Spare parts 6,729 - -

(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No ated Nlature c;:‘ % to
Year : Company Name Related Party Relationship . : Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
Intangible asds 201,983 - -
Other deferred expenses 4,904 - -
Customer 6s deposits 14,273 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Global Inc. 1 Accounts receivable 13,062 - -
Accounts payable 63,823 - -
Revenues 42,473 - -
Operating cas and expenses 200,234 - -
Property, plant and equipment 23,805 - -
Customer 6s deposits 14,379 - -
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 42 416 - -
Accounts payable 81,572 - -
Revenues 94,783 - -
Operating costs and expenses 78,357 - -
Property, plant and equipment 101,277 - -
Spring House Entertainment Inc. 1 Accounts receivable 2,174 - -
Accounts payable 7,362 - -
Amounts collected for others 43,541 - -
Revenues 16,001 - -
Non-operating income and gains 51 - -
Operating costs and expenses 24,192 - -
Customer 6s deposits 5 - -
Intangible assets 2,628 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 6,712 - -
Accounts payable 5,647 - -
Revenues 26,111 - -
Operating costs and expenses 54,528 - -
Light Era Development Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 584 - -
Accounts payable 278 - -
Amounts collected fortbers 1,861 - -
Revenues 4,816 - -
Operating costs and expenses 183 - -
Work in process 507 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 3,727 - -
Accounts payable 3,742 - -
Revenues 37,003 - -
Operating costs and expenses 31,276 - -
Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. 1 Revenues 133 - -
Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 100 - -
Accounts payable 796 - -
Revenues 100 - -
Operating costs and expenses 7,369 - -
Smartfun Digital Co., Ltd. 1 Revenues 1,744 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Vietnam Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 15 - -
Accounts payable 754 - -
Revenues 15 - -
Operating costs and expees 1,346 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No ated Nlature c;:‘ % to
Year : Company Name Related Party Relationship . : Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

Chunghwa Sochamp Technology Inc. 1 Accounts payable 236 - -

Revenues 125 - -

Operating costs and expenses 485 - -

Ceylon Innovation Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 1 - -

Accounts payable 1 - -

Revenues 1 - -

Chief International Corp. 1 Accounts receivable 2,718 - -

Accounts payable 2,587 - -

1 Senao International Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 1,114,099 - -
Other receivable 359,130 - -

Notes receivable 3 - -

Accounts payable 30,430 - -

Other payables 156,880 - -

Advances from customers 22,932 - -

Revenues 7,152,553 - 4

Non-operating income and gains 16 - -

Purchase 117,223 - -

Operating costs and expenses 48,418 - -

Non-operating costs and expenses 5 - -

Refundable deposits 1,181 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 21 - -

Other deferred expenses 7,671 - -

Revenues 20 - -

Spring House Entertainment Inc. 3 Accounts receivable 155 - -

Revenues 585 - -

Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltq 3 Notes payable 10 - -

Revenues 90 - -

Operating costs and expenses 10 - -

Light Era Development Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 46 - -

2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 67,575 - -
Prepaid expenses 15 - -

Other deferred expenses 1,257 - -

Accounts pgable 34,886 - -

Advances from customers 89 - -

Revenues 255,720 - -

Non-operating income and gains 1,497 - -

Operating costs and expenses 198,036 - -

Refundable deposits 333 - -

Chunghwa System Integrati Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 8 - -

Revenues 69 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 241 - -

Accounts payable 1,158 - -

Revenues 11,292 - -

Operating costs and expenses 11,571 - -

(Continued)
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Transaction Details
Y No C N Related P Relationsh o
ear y ompany Name elated Party elationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales o
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

Donghwa Telecom &, Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable $ 73 - -

Revenues 597 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts payable 340 - -

Revenues 107 - -

Operating costs and expenses 898 - -

Spring House Entertainment Inc. 3 Revenues 32 - -

Yao Yong Real Property Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 65,010 - -

3 |Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 311,766 - -
Accounts payable 14,337 - -

Advances from customers 21,467 - -

Deferred revenue 4,142 - -

Revenues 1,605,597 - 1

Operating costs and expenses 6,107 - -

Refundable deposits 14,273 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts payable 21 - -

Revenues 7,671 - -

Operating costs and expenses 20 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Accounts payable 8 - -

Operating costs and expenses 69 - -

Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltq 3 Revenues 860 - -

Spring House Ent@inment Inc. 3 Revenues 1,178 - -

Light Era Development Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 569 - -

Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 1,020 - -

4  |Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., |IChunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 53,508 - -
Accrued custodial receipts 94,149 - -

Prepaid expenses 3,904 - -

Accounts payable 7,778 - -

Amounts collected for others 16,293 - -

Advances from customers 990 - -

Revenues 157,995 - -

Operating costs and expenses 16,705 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 10 - -

Revenues 10 - -

Operating costs and expenses 90 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Operating cets and expenses 860 - -

5 |Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 63,813 - -
Prepaid expenses 10 - -

Advances from customers 2,408 - -

Accounts payable 10,654 - -

Revenues 224,039 - -

Operating costs and expenses 42,473 - -

Refundable deposits 14,379 - -

(Continued)
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Transaction Details

Y No C N Related P Relationsh o
ear y ompany Name elated Party elationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales o
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable $ 267 - -

Revenues 2,621 - -

Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 135 - -

Revenues 334 - -

7 |Spring House Entertainment Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 50,903 - -
Accounts payable 2,174 - -

Revenues 26,820 - -

Operating costs and expenses 16,052 - -

Refundable deposits 5 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts payable 155 - -

Operating costs and expenses 585 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Operating costs and expenses 32 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 1,178 - -

6 Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 20,127 - -
Prepaid expenses 61,445 - -

Accounts payable 12,718 - -

Advances from customers 29698 - -

Revenues 179,634 - -

Operating costs and expenses 94,783 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Accounts payable 73 - -

Operating costs and expenses 597 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. 3 Accounts payable 267 - -

Operating costs and expenses 2,621 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd. 3 Accounts payable 807 - -

Prepaid expenses 24,233 - -

Operating costs and expenses 9,070 - -

8 Light Era Development Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Tedcom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 1,861 - -
Prepaid expenses 278 - -

Accounts payable 584 - -

Revenues 690 - -

Operating costs and expenses 4,816 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 46 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 569 - -

9 |Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Pte., Ltd.  |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 3,742 - -
Accounts payable 3,727 - -

Revemes 31,276 - -

Operating costs and expenses 37,003 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Accounts receivable 1,158 - -

Accounts payable 241 - -

Revenues 11,571 - -

Operating costs and expenses 11,292 - -

(Continwed)
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Transaction Details
No Nature of % to
Year : Company Name Related Party Relationship . : Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable $ 807 - -
Advances from customers 24,233 - -
Revenues 9,070 - -
10 |Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 5,647 - -
Accounts payable 6,081 - -
Advances from customers 631 - -
Revenues 54,528 - -
Operating costs and expenses 26,111 - -
CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Accounts receivable 340 - -
Revenues 898 - -
Operating costs and expenses 107 - -
14 |Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Operating costs and expenses 133 - -
20 |Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 24 - -
Accounts payable 124 - -
Opeating costs and expenses 2,143 - -
Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 1,020 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. 3 Accounts payable 135 - -
Operating costs and expenses 334 - -
25 |Yao Yong Real Property Co., Ltd. CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Revenues 65,010 - -
30 |Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 796 - -
Accounts payable 100 - -
Revenues 7,369 - -
Operatig costs and expenses 100 - -
31 |[Smartfun Digital Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Operating costs and expenses 1,744 - -
32 |Chunghwa Telecom Vietnam Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 754 - -
Accounts payable 15 - -
Revenues 1,346 - -
Operating costs and expenses 15 - -
33 |Chunghwa Sochamp Technology Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 236 - -
Revenues 485 - -
Operatingcosts and expenses 125 - -
34 |Ceylon Innovation Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 1 - -
Accounts payable 1 - -
Operating costs and expenses 1 - -
35 |Chief International Corp. Chunghwarelecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 2,587 - -
Accounts payable 2,718 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
No ated Nlature c;:‘ % to
Year : Company Name Related Party Relationship . : Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

2011 0 Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Senao International Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 162,402 - -
Accounts payable 912,218 - -

Amounts collected for others 284,884 - -

Revenues 770,956 - -

Nonroperating income and gains 5 - -

Operating costs and expenses 5,117,678 - 3

Property, plant and equipment 5,777 - -

Work in process 266 - -

Office supplies 3 - -

Customer 6s deposits 1,410 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 1 Accounts receivable 33,906 - -
Accounts payable 42,986 - -

Amounts collected for others 4,015 - -

Revenues 209,530 - -

Operating costs and expenses 227,358 - -

Customer 6s deposits 333 - -

Chunghwa Precision Test Tech Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 28 - -
Accounts payable 3 - -

Revenues 1,577 - -

Non-operating income and gains 207 - -

Operating costs and expess 2 - -

Customer 6s deposits 157 - -

Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltq 1 Accounts receivable 5,973 - -
Accounts payable 10,493 - -

Amounts collected for others 105,867 - -

Revenues 11,188 - -

Operating costs and expenses 20,757 - -

Work in process 4,236 - -

Office supplies 40 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 13,121 - -
Accounts payable 276,223 - -

Revenues 5,813 - -

Non-operating income and gains 932 - -

Operating costs and expenses 373,964 - -

Property, plant and equipment 561,182 - -

Office supplies 1,335 - -

Work in process 261,926 - -

Spare parts 567 - -

Intangible assets 105,255 - -

Other deferred expenses 4,539 - -

Customer 6s deposits 20,670 - -

(Continued)
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Transaction Details
Y No C N Related P Relationsh o
ear y ompany Name elated Party elationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales o
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)
Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. 1 Accounts receivable 26,339 - -
Accounts payable 67,077 - -
Revenues 75,094 - -
Operating cets and expenses 170,512 - -
Property, plant and equipment 17,538 - -
Customer 6s deposits 14,944 - -
Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 82,513 - -
Accounts payable 82,402 - -
Revenues 82,316 - -
Operating costs and expenses 44,939 - -
Spring House Entertainment Tech. Inc. 1 Accounts receivable 2,463 - -
1 Accounts payable 3,317 - -
Amounts collected for others 28,121 - -
Revenues 7,640 - -
Non-operatirg income and gains 1 - -
Operating costs and expenses 30,567 - -
Customer 6s deposits 5 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 9,339 - -
Accounts payable 5,435 - -
Revenues 30,519 - -
Operating costs and expenses 47,697 - -
Property, plant and equipment 37,591 - -
Light Era Development Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts payable 19,017 - -
Revenues 100,916 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts receivable 2,884 - -
Accounts payable 3,392 - -
Revenues 30,762 - -
Operating costs and expenses 27,041 - -
Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. 1 Revenues 3 - -
Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts payable 910 - -
Revenues 4,254 - -
Smartfun Digital Co., Ltd. 1 Revenues 5 - -
Chunghwa Telecom Vietnam Co., Ltd. 1 Accounts payable 635 - -
Operating costs and expenses 635 - -
Customersd6 deposits 8 - -
Chunghwa Sochamp Technology Inc 1 Revenues 25 - -
International Integrated System Inc. 1 Revenues 4,085 - -
Operating costs and expenses 76,494 - -
1 Senao International Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 932,463 - -
Othe receivables 264,609 - -
Prepaid expenses 30 - -
Accounts payable 2,934 - -
Other payables 159,468 - -
(Continued)
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Transaction Details
Y No C N Related P Relationsh [5a
ear y ompany Name elated Party elationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales o
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

Advances from customers $ 23,271 - -

Revenues 5,146,933 - 3

Non-operating income and gains 62 - -

Purclase 735,322 - -

Operating costs and expenses 35,634 - -

Non-operating costs and expenses 5 - -

Refundable deposits 1,410 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 17 - -

Spring House Entertainment Techcl 3 Revenues 336 - -

Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltq 3 Revenues 38 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Revenues 1 - -

Light Era Development Co., Ltd 3 Revenues 199 - -

International Integrated System Inc. Revenues 246 - -

2 |CHIEF Telecom Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 44,903 - -
Prepaid expenses 2,098 - -

Accounts payable 33,818 - -

Advances from customers 88 - -

Revenues 227,358 - -

Operatiry costs and expenses 209,530 - -

Refundable deposits 333 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 1 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 69 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 1,144 - -

Accounts payable 286 - -

Revenues 6,473 - -

Operating costs and expenses 4,284 - -

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 76 - -

Revenues 645 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Japam CLtd. 3 Accounts payable 1,119 - -

Operating costs and expenses 3,910 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. 3 Operating costs and expenses 19 - -

Yao Yong Real Property Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 65,010 - -

3 |Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 276,042 - -
Prepaid expenses 181 - -

Accounts payable 262 - -

Amounts collected for others 12,859 - -

Other deferred revenues 136,850 - -

Revenues 1,171,918 - 1

Operating costs and expenses 6,745 - -

Refundable deposits 20,670 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 17 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Operating costs and expees 69 - -

Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., Ltq 3 Revenues 1,246 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Global Inc. 3 Revenues 354 - -

(Continued)
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Transaction Details
Y No C N Related P Relationsh o
ear y ompany Name elated Party elationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales o
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

Spring House Entertainment Tech. Inc. 3 Accounts receivable $ 166 - -

Revenues 835 - -

Chunghwa Precisiomest Tech. Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 209 - -

International Integrated System Inc. 3 Revenues 5,382 - -

Operating costs 82 - -

4 Chunghwa International Yellow Pages Co., |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 6,917 - -
Accrued custodial receipts 105,347 - -

Prepaid expenses 4,096 - -

Accounts payable 2,904 - -

Amounts collected for others 1,365 - -

Advances from customers 5,940 - -

Revenues 20,769 - -

Operating costs and expenses 11,160 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 38 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 1,246 - -

Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 59 - -

5 |Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 67,071 - -
Prepaid expenses 6 - -

Accounts payable 26,339 - -

Revenues 188,050 - -

Operating costs and expenses 75,094 - -

Refundable deposits 14,944 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Revenues 19 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 354 - -

Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts receivable 133 - -

Revenues 324 - -

7  |Spring House Entertainment Tech. Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 31,438 - -
Accrued expenses 511 - -

Advances from customers 1,952 - -

Revenues 30,567 - -

Operatingcosts and expenses 7,641 - -

Refundable deposits 5 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 336 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Accounts payable 166 - -

Operating costs and expenses 835 - -

6 Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 82,402 - -
Accounts payable 82,513 - -

Revenues 44,939 - -

Operating costs and expenses 82,316 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Accouns payable 76 - -

Operating costs and expenses 645 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 3,993 - -

(Continued)
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Transaction Details
Y No C N Related P Relationsh [5a
ear y ompany Name elated Party elationship . . Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales o
(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

8 |Light Era Development Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable $ 15,326 - -
Prepaid expeses 3,533 - -

Operating costs and expenses 100,706 - -

Inventory 158 - -

Intangible assets 210 - -

Senao International Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 199 - -

International Integrated System Inc. 3 Revenus 5,175 - -

Operating costs 48 - -

9 |Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 3,392 - -
Accounts payable 2,884 - -

Revenues 27,041 - -

Operating costs and exmTs 30,762 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Accounts receivable 286 - -

Accounts payable 1,144 - -

Revenues 4,284 - -

Operating costs and expenses 6,473 - -

Donghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 3 Revenues 3,993 - -

Chunghwa Tedcom Japan Co., Ltd. 3 Prepaid expenses 569 - -

10 |Chunghwa Telecom Japan Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 5,435 - -
Accounts payable 9,339 - -

Revenues 85,288 - -

Operating costs and expees 30,519 - -

CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Accounts receivable 1,119 - -

Revenues 3,910 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Singapore Co., Ltd. 3 Advances from customers 569 - -

14 |Chunghwa Investment Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Operating costs and expenses 3 - -
20 |Chunghwa Precision Test Tech. Co., Ltd. |Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 3 - -
Accounts payable 28 - -

Operating costs and expenses 1,784 - -

Non-operating inome and gains 2 - -

Refundable deposits 157 - -

Chunghwa System Integration Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 209 - -

Chunghwa Telecom Global, Inc. 3 Accounts payable 133 - -

Operating costs and expenses 324 - -

25 |Yao Yong Real Property Co., Ltd. CHIEF Telecom Inc. 3 Revenues 65,010 - -
30 |Chunghwa Telecom (China) Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Accounts receivable 910 - -
Revenues 4,254 - -

Chunghwa International &flow Pages Co., Ltd. 3 Operating costs and expenses 59 - -

31 |[Smartfun Digital Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Operating costs and expenses 5 - -
Refundable deposits 8 - -

(Continued)
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No Nature of % to
Year : Company Name Related Party Relationship . : Amount Payment Terms| Total Sales or

(Note 1) (Note 2) Financial Statement Account (Note 5) (Note 3) Assets
(Note 4)

32 |Chunghwa Telecom Vietnam Co., Ltd. Chunghwa Telecom Cd.id. 2 Accounts receivable $ 635 - -

Revenues 635 - -

33 |Chunghwa Sochamp Technology Inc. Chunghwa Telecom Co., Ltd. 2 Operating costs and expenses 25 - -

Note 1: Significant transactions between the Company and litsidiaries or among subsidiaries are numbered as follows:
0 for the Company.
u i di

0
bs aries are numbered from n1lo.

(=]

1.

2.
Note 2: Related party transactions are divided into three categories as follows:

1. The Company to subsidiaries.

2. Subsidiaries téthe Company.

3. Subsidiaries to subsidiaries.

Note 3: Transaction terms were determined in accordance with mutual agreements.

Note 4: For assets and liabilities, amount is shown as a percentage to consolidated total assets as of September 30,r&@0d2ued)iosts and expenses are shown as a percentage to consolidated total operating revenues for the nine m
ended September 30, 2012.

Note 5: The amount was eliminated upon consolidation.

(Concluded)
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TABLE 9

CHUNGHWA TELECOM CO., LTD. AND SU BSIDIARIES

SEGMENT INFORMATION
FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011
(Amount in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

International
Domestic Fixed Mobile Fixed
Communications Communications Communications
Business Business Internet Business Business Others Adjustment Total

Nine months ended September 30, 2012
Revenues from external customers $ 56,379,743 $ 75,195,328 $ 18,236,841 $ 11,369,508 $ 2,827,340 $ $ 164,008760
Intersegment revenues (Note 2) $ 12,343,819 $ 4,943,328 $ 2,137,568 $ 1,690,932 $ 818,008 $ (21,933,65% $ -
Segment income before tax $ 10,939,022 $ 20,277,853 $ 6,664,276 $ 984,232 $ (982,143 $ $ 37,888,239
Total assets $ 227,741,446 $ 64,691,432 $ 21.475,166 $ 25.427.031 $ 81,805,273 $ $ 421,140,348
Nine months ended September 30, 2011
Revenues from external customers $ 59,499,848 $ 68,952,210 $ 18,774,879 $ 11427372 $ 3,952,495 $ - $ 162,606,604
Intersegment revenues (Note 2) $ 11,171,735 $ 5,133,570 $ 1,346,442 $ 1,885,869 $ 550,722 $ (20,088,338 $ -
Segment income before tax $ 14,638,991 $ 21497485 $ 7,369,595 $ 1,840,288 $ (787,542 $ - $ 44,558,817
Total assets $ 226,544,655 $ 63,542,003 $ 18,474,485 $ 23,500,339 $ 91,046,556 $ - $ 423,108,038

Note 1: The Company organizes its repog segments based on types of organizational business. The five reporting segments are segregated as below: Donwstiwufii@tions business, mobile
communications business, internet business, international fixed communications business &ind other

Domestic fixed communications businegke provision of local telephone services, domestic long distance telephone services, broadband access, and related services;
Mobile communications businesthe provision of mobile services, sales of meliibndsets and data cards, and related services;

Internet businessthe provision of HiNet services and related services;

International fixed communications busineslse provision of international long distance telephone services and relatedsservice

Others- the provision of nofTelecom Services, aritle corporate related items not allocated to reportable segments.

O O O0OO0Oo

Note 2: Represents intersegment revenues from goods and services.
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